
Agenda Item#: ~ 
PALM BEACH COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2014 [ ] Consent [ ] Regular 
[ ] Ordinance [X] Public Hearing 

Department: Department of Economic Sustainability 

I. EXECUTIVE BRIEF 

Motion and Title: Staff recommends motion to: A) Conduct a Tax Equity & Fiscal 
Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Public Hearing concerning the issuance of the County's up to 
$7,000,000 Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
Project}, Series 2014 (the Bonds) which will fund a loan to Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, 
Inc. (the Company), a Florida non-profit corporation; and B) Approve the application of the 
Company for the issuance of the Bonds. 

Summary: The Company utilizes revenue generated through the sale of donated goods to 
fund, design and deliver vocational and training programs serving persons with disabilities 
and economic disadvantages. The proceeds of the Bonds will be used by the Company to 
refinance the County's Tax-Exempt Adjustable Mode Industrial Development Revenue 
Bonds (Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. Project) Series 2006, refinance conventional 
debt of the Company and finance capital expenditures of the Company. The 2006 Bonds 
were issued to refinance earlier Industrial Development Revenue Bonds issued by the 
County and to finance capital assets for the Company's facilities in Mangonia Park and 
Jupiter. Assets to be financed and refinanced are also located at the Company's facilities 
in Boca Raton, Delray Beach, Greenacres, West Palm Beach, Palm Beach Gardens, Belle 
Glade, Palm Beach, Riviera Beach, Royal Palm Beach and Wellington. Prior to the 
issuance of any portion of the Bonds that will be tax-exempt, the Internal Revenue Code 
requires that the County hold a public hearing. The Bonds will be payable solely from 
revenues derived from the Company. Neither the taxing power nor the faith and credit 
of the County, nor any County funds, shall be pledged to pay the principal, 
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. Districts 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7 (PFK) 

Background and Policy Issues: The Bonds are being purchased by SunTrust Bank or 
one of its affiliated entities. 

Attachments: 
1. Text of the TEFRA Public Notice 
2. Application from Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
3. Economic Impact Analysis 



II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A . F" y s 1ve ear ummary o 1sca mpac: f F" 11 t 
Fiscal Years 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Capital Expenditures 

Operating Costs 

External Revenues ($5,000) 

Program Income 

In-Kind Match (County) 

NET FISCAL IMPACT ($5,000) 

# ADDITIONAL FTE 
POSITIONS (Cumulative) 

Is Item Included In Current Budget? Yes No~ 

Budget Account No.: 

Fund: \530f Dept: I t..\-3 Unit: 2 IOl. (R\Jsc 4--133 Program Code/Period __ _ 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
All costs to be borne by Applicant. Palm Beach County will receive approximately $5,000 
In Industrial development revenue bond fees as well as legal fees for services rendered in 
reviewing this project. 

C. Departmental Fiscal Review: 
~ ,,~ Shairette Maj , Fiscal Manager I 
O(~'\ 

Ill. REVIEW COMMENTS 

A. OFMB Fiscal and/or Contract Development and Control Comments: 

B. 

Senior Assista 

C. Other Department Review: 

Department Direofor 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Public notice is hereby given that the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach 
County, Florida (the "County"), will hold a public hearing in the Jane Thompson Memorial 
Chambers, 6th Floor of the Palm Beach County Governmental Center, 301 North Olive 
Avenue, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401, during a meeting commencing at 9:30 a.m. on 
May 20, 2014, or as soon thereafter as possible, on the proposed issuance by the County 
of its industrial revenue bonds (the "Bonds"), in a principal amount not to exceed 
$7,000,000, for the purpose of providing a loan to Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
(the "Company") to (i) refinance the County's Tax-Exempt Adjustable Mode Industrial 
Ds\fe!opmer.t 9-evenue Bonds (Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. Project) Series 2006, 
(ii) refinance approximately $2.4 million of conventional debt incurred by the Company to 
finance capital assets and (iii) finance up to approximately $530,000 of software and 
equipment capital expenditures and costs of issuance. 

All facilities financed and refinanced with the Bonds consist of land, buildings and 
equipment used in furtherance of the Company's mission to utilize revenue generated 
through the sale of donated goods to fund, design and deliver vocational and training 
programs serving people with disabilities and economic disadvantages. All such facilities 
will be owned and operated by the Company and located at any of the following locations: 
1715 Tiffany Drive East, Mangonia Park, FL, 1280 West Indiantown Road, Jupiter, FL, 
1710 Tiffany Drive East, Mangonia Park, FL, 1887 Old Okeechobee Road, West Palm 
Beach, FL, 11427 West Palmetto Park Road, Boca Raton, FL, 5400 South Dixie Highway, 
West Palm Beach, FL, 9764-2 South Military Trail, Boca Raton, FL, 4224 Northlake 
Boulevard, Palm Beach Gardens, FL, 1640 North Federal Highway, Delray Beach, FL, 
6601 Forest Hill Blvd., Greenacres, FL, 5821 Lake Worth Road, Greenacres, FL, 201 
West Avenue A, Belle Glade, FL, 1662 N Federal Highway, Boca Raton, FL, 210 Sunset 
Ave, Palm Beach, FL, 3500 Broadway, Riviera Beach, FL, 9920 Belvedere Road, Royal 
Palm Beach, FL, 13833 Wellington Trace, Wellington, FL, 4895 Okeechobee Blvd, West 
Palm Beach, FL and 1837 North Military Trail, West Palm Beach, FL. 

The Bonds will be payable solely from revenues derived from the Company. Neither the 
taxing power nor the faith and credit of the County, nor any County funds, shall be 
pledged to pay the principal, premium, if any, or interest on the Bond. All interested 
persons are invited to attend the public hearing, which will be the only public hearing held 
concerning the issuance of the Bonds. Any such interested parties may at their option 
submit written comments to the County Administrator, 11th Floor, 301 North Olive 
Avenue, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401, prior to the hearing. Written comments 
should be received by the County on or before 5:00 p.m. May 19, 2014. Any person 
desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing. If a person decides to 
appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting or hearing, he or she will need to have a record of the proceedings and for 
such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. 

ATTACHMENT 1 



The Palm Beach Post 
REAL NEWS STARTS HERE 

Palm Beach Daily News 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Publi, notice Is hereby given that 
the Board of County Comml~sloners 
of Palm Beach County, Florida(the 
HCounty~), will hold a public hearing 
in the Jane Thompson Memorial 
Ch.i.mbers, 6th Floor of the Palm 
Beach County Governmental Center, 
301 North Olive Avenue. West Palm 
Beach, FllHld.i 33401. during a 
meeting commencing at 9:30 a.m. on 
May 20, 2014, or as soon thereafter as 
possible, 011theprnposed,ssuanceby 
the County ot its Industrial revenue 
bonds {the HBonds"), ma prm~1pal 
amount not to exceed S7,000,000, 
for the purpose of providing a loan 
to Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, 
lnc.(the-company"lto(i)refin,mce 
the County's Tax:-Exempt Adjustable 
Mode Industrial Development 
Revenue Bonds (Gul~tream Goodwill 
h1dustries, Inc. Project) series 2006, {HJ 
refinanceapprox!mately S2.4 milhon 
of conventional debt incurred by the 
Company to fmance capltJI asseh 
and (iii} finam:e up to approximately 
$530,000 of mftware and equ1p1nent 
capital ex:penditures and costs of 
1ssu,mce. All fadlit1es fmanced and 
rnfinanced with the Bonds consist of 
land, buildings and <1qufpm1a1nt used 
in furtherance of the Company's 
mlss!ontoutili2e1evenuegenerated 
through the sale of donated goods to 
fund, design and deliver vocational 
and tr.:iining programs serving 
people with dfsabrlilles and economic 
dis,idvant,iges. All such facilities 
will be owned and operated by the 
Company and located at any of the 
following locatlons: 1715 Tiffany 
Drive East, Mangonia Park, fl. 1280 
West Indiantown Ra3d, Jupiter, fl, 
1710 Tiffany Drive East Mangoma 
Park, FL, 1887 Old Okeechobee Road, 
West Palm aeach, FL, 11427 West 
Palmetto Park Road, Boca Raton, 
FL, 5400 South Diltie Highway, Weit 
PalmBeach,fL9764-2SouthMilltary 
Trail, Boca Raton, FL 4224 No1 th lake 
Boulvevard, P.:ilm Beach Gardens, 
Fl. 1640 North Federal Highway, 
Delray Beach. fl, 6601 Fornst Hill 
Blvd., Greenacres, FL, 5821 Lake 
Worth Road, Greenacres, Fl, 201 
WestAvenueA,Be!leGlade,FL, 1662 
N Fedeial Highway. Boca Raton. FL. 
21osunsetAve,PalmBaach, FL,3500 
Broadway. Riviera Beach, Fl, 9920 
BelvedereRoad,RoyalPalmBeadi,fl. 
13B3J Wellington Trace. Wellington, 
FL, 4895 Okeechobee Blvd, West Palm 
Beach. fl and 1837 North Mili1ary 
Trail, West P21lm B<?ach, H. The Bands 
will be payable solely from revenues 
derived horn the Company. Neither 
the tai(lng power nor the faith and 
cred1toftl1eCounty, nor any County 
funds, ,hall be pledged to pay the 
princ1pal,p1em1um,1fany.ormterE'st 
an the Bond. All interested persons 
,ue Invited to attend the public 
hearmg,whKhwillbetheonlypubhc 
hearing held concerning the issuance 
of the Bond, Any su(h mtE'rested 
parties may at their option submit 
~Witten comments to the County 
Administrator, 11th Floor, 301 North 
Olive Avenue, West Palm Be.ich, 
Florida 33401, pnor to the hearing 
Written rnmments should be received 
by the County on or before s:oo p.m. 
May 19, 2014. Any person deming 
ta present oral comments should 
appear at the hea,ing. If a person 
decides to appeal any dechion made 
by the Commission with respect to any 
matter comidered at this meetmg or 
hearing, heor she will need to have 
a record ot the proceedings and for 
such purpose, he or she may need to 
ensure that a verbatim reco1d of the 
proceedmgs is made, which record 
mcludes the testimony and evidence 
upon WhKhtheappeaJ i~to be bosed. 
PUB:ThePalmBeachPl½t 
4-2012014 #B6SS'l 

!r,()fllflY'i'IHT, 

GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH 

Before the undersigned authority personally 
appeared Rosemary Hindmarch, who on oath says 
that she is Call Center Legal Advertising 
Representative of The Palm Beach Post, a daily 
and Sunday newspaper, published at West Palm 
Beach in Palm Beach County, Florida; that the 
attached copy of advertising for a Notice 

was published in said newspaper on 
First date of Publication 04/20/2014 and last date of 
Publication 04/20/2014 

Affiant further says that the said The Post is a 
newspaper published at West Palm Beach, in said 
Palm Beach County, Florida, and that the said 
newspaper has heretofore been continuously 
published in said Palm Beach County, Florida, daily 
and Sunday and has been entered as second class 
mail matter at the post office in West Palm Beach, 
in said Palm Beach County, Florida, for a period of 
one year next preceding the first publication of the 
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further 
says that she/he has neither paid nor promised any 
person, firm or corporation any discount rebate, 
commission or refund for the purpose of securing 
this advertisement for publication in the said 
newspaper. Also published in Martin and St. Lucie 
Counties. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
AdlD:478234 
Ad Cost: 412.80 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Public notice is hereby given that 
the Board of County Commissioners 
of Palm Beach County, Florida (the 
"County"), will hold a public hearing 
in the Jane Thompson Memorial 
Chambers, 6th Floor of the Palm 
Beach County Governmental Center, 
301 North Olive Avenue, West Palm 
Beach, Florida 33401, during a 
meeting commencing at 9:30 a.m. on 
May 20, 2014, or as soon thereafter as 
possible, on the proposed issuance by 
the County of its industrial revenue 
bonds (the "Bonds"), in a principal 
amount not to exceed $7,000,000, 
for the purpose of providing a loan 
to Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, 
Inc. (the "Company") to (i) refinance 
the County's Tax-Exempt Adjustable 
Mode Industrial Development 
Revenue Bonds (Gulfstream Goodwill 
Industries, Inc. Project) Series 2006, (ii) 
refinance approximately $2.4 million 
of conventional debt incurred by the 
Company to finance capital assets 
and (iii) finance up to approximately 
$530,000 of software and equipment 
capital expenditures and costs of 
issuance. All facilities financed and 
refinanced with the Bonds consist of 
land, buildings and equipment used 
in furtherance of the Company's 
mission to utilize revenue generated 
through the sale of donated goods to 
fund, design and deliver vocational 
and training programs serving 
people with disabilities and economic 
disadvantages. All such facilities 
will be owned and operated by the 
Company and located at any of the 
following locations: 1715 Tiffany 
Drive East, Mangonia Park, FL, 1280 
West Indiantown Road, Jupiter, FL, 
1710 Tiffany Drive East, Mangonia 
Park, FL, 1887 Old Okeechobee Road, 
West Palm Beach, FL, 11427 West 
Palmetto Park Road, Boca Raton, 
FL, 5400 South Dixie Highway, West 
Palm Beach, FL, 9764-2 South Military 
Trail, Boca Raton, FL, 4224 Northlake 
Boulvevard, Palm Beach Gardens, 
FL, 1640 North Federal Highway, 
Delray Beach, FL, 6601 Forest Hill 
Blvd., Greenacres, FL, 5821 Lake 
Worth Road, Greenacres, FL, 201 
West Avenue A, Belle Glade, FL, 1662 
N Federal Highway, Boca Raton, FL, 
210 Sunset Ave, Palm Beach, FL, 3500 
Broadway, Riviera Beach, FL, 9920 
Belvedere Road, Royal Palm Beach, FL, 
13833 Wellington Trace, Wellington, 
FL, 4895 Okeechobee Blvd, West Palm 
Beach, FL and 1837 North Military 
Trail, West Palm Beach, FL. The Bonds 
will be payable solely from revenues 
derived from the Company. Neither 
the taxing power nor the faith and 
credit of the County, nor any County 
funds, shall be pledged to pay the 
principal, premium, if any, or interest 
on the Bond. All interested persons 
are invited to attend the public 
hearing, which will be the only public 
hearing held concerning the issuance 
of the Bonds. Any such interested 
parties may at their option submit 
written comments to the County 
Administrator, 11th Floor, 301 North 
Olive Avenue, West Palm Beach, 
Florida 33401, prior to the hearing. 
Written comments should be received 
by the County on or before 5:00 p.m. 
May 19, 2014. Any person desiring 
to present oral comments should 
appear at the hearing. If a person 
decides to appeal any decision made 
by the Commission with respect to any 
matter considered at this meeting or 
hearing, he or she will need to have 
a record of the proceedings and for 
such purpose, he or she may need to 
ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record 
includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based. 
PUB: The Palm Beach Post 
4-20/2014 #236559 



MARK Eo RAYMOND 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

April 10, 2014 

Palm Beach County, Florida 
c/o Steven Misshula 
Department of Economic Sustainability 
100 Australian Ave. 
Suite 500 
West Palm Beach, FL 33406 

4360 NORTHLAKE BOULEVARD 
SUITE 204 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL 33410 
Tel: 561.775.8440 
Fax: 561.775.8442 
mark.raymond@mraymondlaw.com 

Re: Industrial Development Bond Application for Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have been engaged by Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. ("Goodwill"), to serve as 
bond coun.sel in connection with a proposed tax-exempt industrial revenue bond issuance for the 
benefit of the Goodwill. Goodwill is asking the County to issue up to $7,000,000 in principal 
amount of bonds. 

Accordingly, enclosed please find the application by Goodwill for this financing. Set 
forth below is the . infon:nation required by the c!PPlication instructions to the extent s~ch 

c- -iiiforn:faticYifTs-= not incluaecrm theapp1icafiolCifselr.TI-re=nl.linbers~pre-cettin1f such• 11Ifornratrort -
correspond to the numbers on the application instructions pursuant to which such information is 
provided. 

1. Chairman, Board of Directors Bert Premuroso; President /CEO Marvin A. Tanck. 

2. Goodwill operates multiple facilities throughout Palm Beach County as well as in 
Martin, St .. Lucie, Indian River and Okeechobee Counties. The administrative of.fices are located 
in Mangonia Park. All of the assets involved in the proposed financing are located in Palm Beach 
County. · 

3. Goodwill commenced operations in 1966. The mission of the Company is to 
utilize revenue generated through the sale of donated goods to fund, . design and deliver 
vocational and training programs serving people with disabilities and economic disadvantages. 
The goal of the Company is to assist those served in becoming an integral part of the local work 
force and to lead independent lives. 

4. The proposed transaction will refinance the County's Tax-Exempt Adjustable 
Mode Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. Project) 
Series 2006, presently outstanding in the amount of approximately $4,060,000. The Bonds will 
also refmance approximately $2.4 million of conventional debt incurred by Goodwill to fmance 

ATTACHMENT 2 



Palm Beach County, Florida 
April 10, 2014 
Page2 

capital assets. New money to finance up to approximately $530,000 of software and equipment 
capital expenditures and costs of issuance will be included. 

5. Property taxes will not be impacted. 

6. This financing will take the form of a private placement with a bank. SunTrust 
Bank and/or STI Institutional & Government, Inc., an affiliate of SunTrust Bank, will hold the 
debt. 

7. The bonds will be sold by negotiated sale. 

8. Enclosed in this application package are three years of financial statements 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles which have been audited 
or reviewed. by an independent Certified Public Accountant as well as five year financial 
projections. 

9. Please see the attached distribution list for the names, addresses and phone 
numbers of the parties to the financing team. 

Very truly yours, 

- -----· - -----···-·-------··- - - - ----- -- . d!i~~-····-~%;;.c~--

Mark E. Raymond 

- - --------~------------ ------ -------- •-<-• ----·-··------~ ------------------ ---



INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BOND 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

APPLICATION FORM 

'\/Vhen there is insufficient space on the application fo provide information 
inch.llde attachments. Enclose al! pertinent documentation. 

iNDUSTRiAL R~VENUE BOND FINANCING 
PIROJIECT EllGIBlllTY QUESTIONNAIRE 

1. Entity that will lease or purchase the project (or borrow the bond proceeds) from the bond issuer. 

Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 

17'15 Tiffany Drive East 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33407 

-·•··: ::...:: .. ::=::-::.=::::·--:c::f56~rfe4:s.;;:"t--200~-=====c=====c===~==~=::a:==========~==:ca::·=·· 

This entity is referred to as the project's "principal user" for the remainder of this questionnaire. 

2. Form of organization of principal user (check one): corporation 

Is the principal user related to any other organization by more than 50% common ownership? No. 

3. Ownership: List all stockholders or partners having 10% or more interest in the principal user: None. 

4. If any of the above persons own more than 50% of the principal user, list all other organizations which 
are related to the principal user by virtue of such persons having more than a 50% interest in such 
organizations: N/A 

5. Location of the project (street address & municipality or unincorporated area of County): 

The "project" includes only the refinancing of existing debt and the financing of software and hardware for a 
point of sale system. No new buildings or real estate improvements are included. The assets to be 
financed/refinanced will be located at the following locations: · · 

1715 Tiffany Drive East, Mangonia Park, FL 

1280 West Indiantown Road, Jupiter, FL 

1710 Tiffany Drive East, Mangonia Park, FL 

1887 Old Okeechobee Road, West Palm Beach, FL 

Page 1 of 4 
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114-27 West Palmetto Park Road, Boca Raton, FL 
5400 South Dixie Highway, West Palm Beach, FL 
9764-2 South Military Trail, Boca Raton, FL 
4224 Northlake Boulvevard, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 
1640 North Federal Highway, Delray Beach, FL 
6601 Forest Hill Blvd., Greenacres, FL 
5821 Lake Worth Road, Greenacres, FL 

6. Projec', Site (land):N/A (see "project" description above) 

(a) indicate approximate size (in acres or square feet) of project site: Are there buildings now on the project site? 

(b) Indicate the present use of the project site: 

(c) indicate present owner of project site: 

7. If tile piincipai user now owns the project site, indicate: 

(a) Date of Purchase: various 

{b) Purchase Price: various 

(c) Bcilance of Existing Mortgage:$4,060,000 

(d) Holder of Mortgage: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Goodwill owns only the Mangonia Park and Jupiter locations. All other locations are leased and only equipment located at the leased locations is being refinance. 

8. If the principal user is not now the owner of the project site, does the principal user have an option to purchase the site and any buildings on the site? N/A 

9. Has the principal user entered into a contract to purchase the site? N/A 

10. If the principal user is not the owner of project site, does the principal user now lease the site or any buildings on the site? N/A 

11. Is there a relationship legally or by virtue of common control or ownership between the principal user and the seller/ lessor of the project site? N/A 

12. Does the project involve acquisition of an existing building or buildings? no 

13. Does the project consist of the construction of a new building or buildings? no 

14. bees the project consist of additions and/or renovations to existing buildings? no 

15. What will be the use of the buildings or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded by the principal user for this project? NIA 

Page 2 of 4 



·J 6. If any space in the project is to be leased to third parties, indicate total square footage of the project, amount to be leased to each tenant, and proposed use by each tenant: NIA 

17. Has construction work on this project begun? NIA 

18. List principal items or categories of equipment to be acquired as part of the project: Software for a point 
of sale system. 

19. Has any of the above equipment been ordered or purchased? No 

20. List the face amount of all tax-exempt finance previously arranged by or for the benefit of the principal 
user in Palm Beach County: 

Date of Issue Original Face Current Outstanding 

512412006 $5,210,0000 $4,060,000 

21. State the proposed uses of bond proceeds: Proceeds of the bonds will be used to retire the principal of the 2006 bonds referenced in item 20, to refinance conventional debt incurred to finance capital assets 
(primarily equipment) located at the Borrower's locations identified in item 5, to finance software for a. point of sale system and to pay costs of issuance. 

22. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the applicant? No 

23. Have any of the above expenditures been incurred but not paid by the principal user? No 

-·· ~24-. -· --Araco-sts-~fwork~ngcapltal:-mav1ng expenses, work in process, ·or sfock in tracleincludeclln°the -·---------·--
proposed uses of bond proceeds? no 

25. Will any of the funds to be borrowed through the County be used to repay or refinance an existing mortgage or outstanding loan? yes 

If yes, indicate particulars: Proceeds of the bonds will be used to retire the principal of the 2006 bonds referenced in item 20, to refinance conventional° debt incurred to finance capital assets (primarily equipment) located at the Borrower's locations identified in item 5. The 2006 bonds were issued to refinance earlier !DB's issued by the County and to finance capital assets for the principal user. 

(Complete questions 26 and 27 only if the proposed financing is an 
industrial development financing in excess of $1 million.) 

26. List capital expenditures with respect to this project: Up to approximately $530,000. 

27. List capital expenditures with respect to other facilities of the principal user or any related person, if 
the facilities are located in Palm Beach County: NIA This is a 501 (c)(3) financing. 

28. Indicate approximate number of individuals who will be employed after completion of the project: 

The Borower has approxiamtely 654 Full-time employees, 456 Part-time employees and 45 open 
positions. Total payroll hours equal approximately 867 Full Time Equivalents. 

Page 3 of 4 



-----'----- -···-·-····· ....... ·---······ ... -............... ·-·-········ .. ,·-·-····· ..... ·-·····-·-··-·· .... -... ··-· ... ·-- ·-··-· -····-·· ................ -................. _ ........... - ... ·-.. -.... ··--- ---··-·-··- . -.... ! 

29. Do any of said employees require specialized training or skills to qualify·for said employment?.Yes .. 
Certain personnel re.quire specialized training. The Company provides training and local 
educational institutions also provide such training. 

30. Please indicate utility needs; i e, electrical, water and sewer Include quantity and character of 
said needs: All utility needs are currently met. 

31. Does the project produce emissions through stacks or chimneys which would subject it to the 
juristjiction of the Florida Department of Environmental Regulation? . no 

32. Does the projeci produce sewage, industriai effluent, or discharge of an unusual character requiring 
specialized treatment? no 

~ 
Authorized Signature C, 
Print Name: iVlar:, E. Raymond 
Tifl-s: Atto;ney for J;ppHc.-.ant 
Date: April 9, 20'14 
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Gulfstream Goodwill Industries 
5 Year Projection Presentation 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2,018 
REVENUES 

33,220,537 Store Sales 34,881,564 36,974,458 38,083,691 39,226,202 
8,197,125 Employment& Training 8,361,068 8,611,900 8,698,019 8,958,959 

955,311 Respect of Florida 955,311 955,311 983,970 983,970 
2,582,590 Nish Okeechobee Waterways 2,582,590 2,582,590 2,660,068 2,660,068 

217,702 Contracts 213,348 209,081 215,353 215,353 
100,600 Donations 150,000 200,000 200,000 250,000 
210,000 Fund Raising 225,000 250,000 250,000 300,000 

!,612,963 Salvage 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,732,500 1,819,125 
75,000 Miscellaneous Income 77,250 79,568 81,955 84,413 

400,000 Career Academy expense reimbursement 412,000 412,000 424,360 437,091 
617,366 Lighthouse expense reimbursement 635,887 654,964 654,964 674,612 .... 48,189,194 TOTAL REVENUES $ 50,144,017 $ 52,579,870 $ 53,984,880 $ 55,609,794 ~ 

EXPENSES 
24,475,040 Payroil 25,698,792 26,983,732 27,793,244 28,627,041 

1,543,076 Employee Health & Benefits 1,774,537 1,827,774 1,882,607 1,939,085 
l,865,646 FICA - Employer 1,958,928 2,056,875 2,118,581 2,182,138 

232,200 Unemployment Tax 239,166 246,341 253,731 261,343 
824,027 Workers1 Comp. Ins. 848,748 874,210 900,437 . 927,450 

28,939,989 Total Payroll Related Expenses 30,520,172 31,988,931 32,948,599 33,937,057 
264,065 Pension Plan 271,987 280,147 288,551 297,207 
961,395 Professional Fees 990,237 1,010,042 1,040,343 1,071,553 

1,015,745 Supplies 1,046,217 1,077,604 1,109,932 1,143,230 
519,585 Telephone & Internet 535,173 551,228 · 567,765 584,797 
192,459 Postage & Shipping 198,233 204,180 210,305 216,614 

·-· .. --· - ___ -Q,@8.,263--Building.Rents---- ----~-~--
-··· -----· ~-2.072,~U-~7----2,:34~,6-8~,- ___ ?.~~?~021 __ -----J>t2J3,778 _ 

750,000 General Liability Insurance 825,000 849,750 875,243 901,500 
258,000 Interest Expense 252,840 247,783 237,872 232,916 
739,839 Electdc & Water 762,034 784,895 808,442 832,695 
539,800 Maintenance & Repair 555,994 572,674 589,854 607,550 
68,078 Taxes, Licenses & Permits 70,120 72,224 72,224 74,391 

226,211 Rentals & Maintenance Contracts 232,997 239,987 247,187 254,602 
270,878 Public Relations & Printing 279,004 287,374 295,996 304,876 
156,205 Auto Expense Reimbursement 160,891 165,718 170,689 175,810 
799,802 Vehicle Consumable Supplies 823,796 848,510 873,965 900,184 
121,299 Vehicle Repair & Parts 124,938 128,686 132,547 136,523 
171,548 Vehicle Insurance 205,858 212,033 218,394 224,946 
307,128 Vehicle Rental 316,342 325,832 335,607 345,675 

8,272 Vehicle Licenses 8,520 8,776 9,039 9,310 
946,572 Trash & Dumpage Fees 974,969 1,004,218 1,034,345 1,065,375 
54,479 Membership Dues 56,113 57,797 59,531 61,317 

142,478 Conferences, Conventions, & Meetings 146,752 151,155 155,690 160,360 
170,000 GIIDues ·175,100 180,353 "185,764 191,336 . 
110,059 Miscellaneous Expenses 113,361 116,762 120,264 123,872 

2,300 Specific assistance to Organization 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 
983,412 Depxeciation and amortization 1,012,914 1,043,302 1,074,601 1,106,839 

47,527,861 1'01'AL EXPE!{SES 49,734,443 51,757,086 53,290,287 54,876,904 
$ 651,333 NET PROFIT (LOSS) $ 409,574 $ 822,784 $ 694,592 $ 732,890 -

- ·-- ---------------~--------- --~ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR1S REPORT 

To tne Board of Directors of 
Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
VI/est Palm Beach, F[orlda 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial smiements of Gulfstream Goodwill 
!ndustries, !nc. (a nonprofit corporation}, which comprise the conso!ldated statement of financial 
position as of December 31, 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows and 

. functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
ManagBmi:mt is responsible for the preparation and fair· presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordan·ce with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation ancl falr presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolldated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing· 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
pJan and. perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial -:: statements arefree ofma.terla.l misstatement. •-· . ... - . . . - . ... .. -- -- - -- - - ..... - --

An audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dtsclosures in 
the conso!Jdated firiancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinlon. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial pos1tion of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc., as of December 31, 
2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Gulfstream Goodwill Industries 
5 Year Projection Presentation 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2,018 
REVENUES 

33,220,537 Store Sales 34,881,564 36,974,458 38,083,691 39,226,202 
8,197,125 Employment & Training 8,361,068 8,611,900 8,698,019 8,958,959 

955,311 Respect of Florida 955,311 955,311 983,970 983,970 
2,582,590 Nish Okeechobee Waterways 2,582,590 2,582,590 2,660,068 2,660,068 

217,702 Contracts 213,348 209,081 215,353 215,353 
100,600 Donations 150,000 200,000 200,000 250,000 
210,000 Fund Raising 225,000 250,000 250,000 300,000 

l,612,963 Salvage 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,732,500 1,819,125 
75,000 Miscellaneous Income 77,250 79,568 81,955 84;413 

400,000 Career Academy expense reimbursement 412,000 412,000 424,360 437,091 
617,366 Lighthouse expense reimbursement 635,887 654,964 654,964 674,612 

{" 48,189,194 TOTAL REVENUES $ 50,144,017 $ 52,579,870 $ 53,984,880 $ 55,609,794 " 
EXPENSES 

24,475,040 Payroll 25,698,792 26,983,732 27,793,244 28,627,041 
1,543,076 Employee Health & Benefits 1,774,537 1,827,774 1,882,607 1,939,085 
1,865,646 FICA "Employer 1,958,928 2,056,875 2,118,581 2,182,138 

232,200 Unemployment Tax 239,166 246,341 253,731 261,343 
824,027 Workers' Comp. Ins. 848,748 874,210 900,437 · 927,450 

28,939}>89 Total Payroll Related Expenses 30,520,172 31,988,931 32,948,599 33,937,057 
264,065 Pension Plan 271,987 280,147 288,551 297,207 
961,395 Professional Fees 990,237 1,010,042 1,040,343 1,071,553 

1,015,745 Supplies 1,046,217 1,077,604 1,109,932 1,143,230 
519,585 Telephone & Internet 535,173 551,228 · 567,765 584,797 
192,459 Postage & Shipping 198,233 204,180 210,305 216,614 

8,808,263 Building Rents 9,072,50 9,344,686 9,Gzs,o~n 9,913,778 -- ---· .. -----~5<((J•-O-Generall::ialillfty Insui1111ce 82-S,0U~ ~--"---1r;r9;7 ~o 875;211'3 -:9or,so:o: :. 
258,000 Interest Expense 252,840 247,783 237,872 232,916 
739,839 Electric & Water 762,034 784,895 808,442 832,695 
539,800 Maintenance & Repair 555,994 572,674 589,854 607,550 

68,078 Taxes, Licenses & Permits 70,120 72,224 72,224 74,391 
226,211 Rentals & Maintenance Contracts 232,997 239,987 247,187 254,602 
270,878 Public Relations & Printing 279,004 287,374 295,996 304,876 
156,205 Auto Expense Reimbursement 160,891 165,718 170,689 175,810 
799,802 Vehicle Consumable Supplies 823,796 848,510 873,965 900,184 
121,299 Vehicle Repair & Parts 124,938 128,686 132,547 136,523 
171,548 Vehicle Insurance 205,858 212,033 218,394 224,946 
307,128 Vehicle Rental 316,342 325,832 335,607 345,675 

8,272 Vehicle Licenses 8,520 8,776 9,039 9,310 
946,572 Trash & Dumpage Fees 974,969 1,004,218 1,034,345 1,065,375 
54,479 Membership Dues 56,113 57,797 59,531 61,317 

142,478 Conferences, Conventions, & Meetings 146,752 151,155 155,690 160,360 
170,000 GIT Dues ·175,100 180,353 185,764 191,336 . 
110,059 Miscellaneous Expenses 113,361 116,762 120,264 123,872 

2,300 Specific assistance to Organization 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 
983,412 Depreciation and amortization 1,012,914 1,043,302 1,074,601 1,106,839 

47,527,861 TOTAL EXPE!fSES 49,734,443 51,757,086 53,290,287 54,876,904 
$ 661)333 NET PROFIT (LOSS) $ 409,574 $ 822,784 $ 694,592 $ 732,890 



Other Matter 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards and Other Financial 
Assistance on page 30 ls presented for purposes of additional analysls as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non~Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financral statements. In addition, the 
supplemental schedules on pages 31 to 32 and 35, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and 
are also not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements. The sup pf emental schedules on 
pages 33 and 34 as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
also not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the e-onso[idated financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including cornpartng and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audifing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects ln relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. · 
Othe,r Repoiiing Required by Government Auditing Standards 
!n accordance vvith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 28, 2013, 
on our consideration of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matcers. The purpose of that report ts to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal contro! over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit. 

_: __ -- -6~~~~ ~ 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
May 28, 2013 

----·--·------.- --------·· ---



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC, CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POS!T!ON 

As of December 31, 2012 (with comparable totals for 2011) 

T empon,irily Permanently 2012 2011 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Totals Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivafents $ 3,525,774 $ $ $ 3,525,774 $ 2,496,984 
Investments 723,685 723,685 494,390 
Accounts receivable, net 1,896,118 1,896,118 ·l,650,100 
Note recelvable, current 7,988 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 567,333 667,333 498,731 
Contributed goods inventory 2,570,944 2,570,944 2,294,239 

Total current assets 9,283,854 9,283,854 7,342,432 

Cash, designated 271,937 271,937 
Note receivable, non-current 611,260 

. Land, bu1!ding, and equipment, net 9,219,637 9,219,637 9,116,835 
BeneficaI Interest in trusts 

and estate 1,048,474 270,697 1,3'19,171 1,104,479 
Total assets $ 18,775,428 $ 1,048,474 $ 270,697 $ 20,094,599 $ 18,175,006 

L!ABJL!TIES AND NET ASSETS 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 493,846 $ $ $ 493,846 $ 349,502 
Accrued expenses 1,539,763 1,539,763 1,456,493 
Deferred revenue 3,322 
Curren.tportion of ca_2ital leases, 

-----------------~- ··-- .. notes-ah<:tbond-payable --·-· ~--="-:34o,8l3~--c:~~~~---:::-c· 'to,863 302~824 
Total current liabilities 2,379,472 2,379,472 2,112,141 

Capital [eases and notes payable 2,447,253 2,447,253 2,463,090 
Derivative financial instrument 568,785 568,785 653,207 
Bond payable 4,060,000 4,060,000 4,270,000 

Total liabHities 9,455,510 9,455,510 9,498.438 

Net assets 9,319,918 1,048,474 270,697 10,639,089 8,676,568 
Total fiabilities and net assets $ 18,775,428 $ 1,048,474 $ 270,697 $ 20,094,599 $ 18,175,006 

Sae accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREJ\M GOODWILL INDUSTRlES, INC. 

For the ~'ear, Ended December 31, 2012 

Temporarlly 
Unrestricted Restricted 

Support and revenues: 
Support: 

Contributed goods store sales $ 28,631,671 $ 
Salvage and recycling 1,516,879 
Contributions and bequest 563,179 140,000 

Tota! support 30,711,729 140,000 

Revenues: 
Employment and training 6,081,980 
Contracts 3,982,750 ' -
lnvestment income 18,077 
Gain on disposal of assets 12 
Realized and unrealized gain 
(loss) on investments 25,915 

Change in value of beneficial 
inieresl in trusts and estate 74,691 

Other revenues: 
E-books 345,360 
Participant rBnts 212,668 
Administrative fee 400,851 
Miscellaneous 48,022 

Total revenues '11,115,635 74,691 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
ACTIVITIES 

(with comparable totals for 2011) 

Permanently 2012 2011 
Restricted Totals Totals 

$ $ 28,631,671 $ 26,775,914 
1,516,879 1,427,552 

703,i79 893,483 

30,851,729 29,096,949 

6,081,980 5,181,723 
3,982,750 4,213,777 

18,077 42,284 
12 463,872 

25,915 (15,159) 

74,691 (35,964) 

345,360 345,113 
212,668 214,902 
400,851 453,144 
48,022 12,015 

11,190,326 10,875,707 

_:=:-:=::_,- ------1'.-0tal sup.port: and_r_eY-$OlleS _ _:_ _ ______4J,82Z,;l6L _ : ~-2J4,6_9j _ _:__ __ 42,042,055 . 39,972,656 

Expenses: 
Program se_rvic~s: 

Vocational and rehabilitation 35,836,759 35,836,759 34,147,177 
Supporting services: 

Management and general 3,891,566 3,891,566 3,832,071 
Fundrafsing 435,631 435,631 31,522 

Tota! expenses 40,163,956 40,163,956 38,010,770 

Other gain (loss): 
Gain (loss) on derivative 

financial instrument 84,422 84,422 (72,765) 

Change in net assets 1,747,830 214,691 1,962,521 1,889,121 

Net assets, beginning of year 7,572,088 833,783 270,697 8,676,568 6,787,447 

Net assets, end of year $ 9,319,918 $ 1,048,474 $ 270,697 $ 10,639,089 $ 8,676,568 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

Fort~~ _Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from support and revenues 
Cash paid for program and supporting services 
Investment income 
Interest paid: 

Non-occupancy related 
Occupancy related 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from note receivable 
Purchase of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of land, building, and equipment 
Purch.:1se of investments 
Proceeds from radempUon of investments 
Proceeds fro;n beneficial interest in trusts 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash fl01,vs from financing activities: 
Payment on capital leases and notes payable 
Payment on bond payable 

Net cash used in financing activities 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS 

(wUh comparable totals for 2011) 

2012 2011 

$ 41,106,591 
(38,631,944) 

18,077 

$ 38,971,139 
(36,705,796) 

42,283 

(178,301) (184,474) 
(202,439) _ ___,(=.:20=-=9-'=,2=-80=.L.} 

2,111,984 1,913,872 

619,248 5,752 
(909,932) (498,770) 

600 25,000 
(203,380) (414,544) 

78,183 
5,956 

(493,464) (798,423) 

(117,793) (240,917) 
(200,000) {190,000) 

(317,793} {430,917) 
.. ········- ·=---=-=t· errange-inccas:J:i=-=====-====-========.c============ =l1-so.El,Z-2'l ::- -, 684.,5 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equlvalents, ending of year 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash, designated 

2,496,984 1,812,452 

$ 3,797,711 $ 2,496,984 

$ 3,525,774 $ 2,496,984 
271,937 

$ 3,797,711 $ 2,496,984 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTRE0.M GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Yea1:_E:nded December 31, 2012 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Change ln nei assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash provlded by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on disposal of assets 
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments 
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts and estate 
Non-cash donation of vehicle and computer hardware and software 
PiOvision for bad debt 
(Gain) loss on derivative financial instrument 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Contributed goods inventory 
Beneficial intemst in estate 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payabfe 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS 

(with comparable totals for 2011) 

2012 2011 

$ 1,962,521 $ 1,889,121 

981,945 975,509 
(12) (463,872) 

(25,915) 15,159 
(74,691) 35,964 

(344,027) 
50,721 77,880 

(84,422) 72,765 

(396,739) {20,814) 
(109,006) (183,995) 
(276,705) - (7,4'!0) 
(140,000) 

144,344 (246,7i5) 
83,270 1'15,362 
(3,327) (1,055} 

$ 2,111,984 $ 1,913,872 

-- .. -·- ... --=--::: - · -- . .:. -==:=:_-=cSttf5plementalscl'fedt1te-=-ef=rr0~neasl'Fiff\leStifl~fal1<Miffi:fl'l:e:jnti=ae-twm··e: s:;.=-·========----:===========::d 
During l.he year ended December 31, 2012, the Organization entered into capital 
leases of approximately $135,00.0. The amount is included in equipment and 
capital leases on the Statement of Financial Position. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAl\~ GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

For th~ Year ?nclecl December 31, 2012 (with comparable totals for 2011) 

Program Services Supporting Services -:--::-----".!.C..J.;...;;...;..;.;..,e..._...;..;.. ___ _ 

Vocationaf and Management 
Rehabilitation and General Fundra!sing 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes and related 

Total saiarles and other related 
expenses 

$ 18,171,022 
1,369,506 
1,973,927 

21,514,455 

$ 1,967,574 
176,228 
196,716 

2,340,518 

Bad debt expense 50,720 
Bank and other fees 52,747 50,326 

$ 249,693 
17,767 
26,971 

294,431 

1,329 
Interest (non-occupancy) ··························-- .•.• ___ 1_7_8~,3_0_1 _ 
Meetings '15,066 11,872 42,491 
Membership dues 9,880 ·185,987 5,816 
Store discounts and other 79,506 28,722 3,393 

Occupancy ···---··-·-··-····-·----9""'",9_3_2..:.,,8_1_9_ ...••• _ .• 185,292, _____ 1_36_ 
Postage 126,701 2,233 6,476 

2012 
Totals 

$ 20,388,289 
1,563,501 
2,197,614 

24,149,404 

60,720 
104,402 
178,301 

69,429 
201,683 
111,621 

10,118,247 
135,410 

Professlcnal fees and contract 
services 665,629 

8,419 
216,628 

1,251 
7,820 890,077 

Shipping and freight 
Specific assistance to clients 

365 10,035 

2011 
Totals 

$ 18,629,996 
1,411,573 
2,368,730 

22.410,299 

77,880 
101,082 

...•...•..•• 184,474 .• 
38,230 

198,136 
330,725 

9,844,310 __ 
151,948 

788,229 
.3,501 

and organizatrons ...••.•.•.••••.•..•.••.... 11, 736 ___ 11, 750·············----···-······-· 23,_48_6 ____ 35,059 ·-
Supplies and printing 1,059,179 79,154 49,039 1,187,372 1,034,663 
Telephone 473,778 75,004 8,672 557,454 561,638 

· - - :~-..:..:.....=r-ransrrortation --- -- - ==-i~r,rmr=--08~';'552- 'f3~2-~~t-;694';'6¥0 J,2:t~s---~----:~-: 
Depreciat1on and amortization 594,058 385,256 2,631 981,945 975,511 

Total expenses $ 35,836,759 $ 3,891,566 $ 435,631 $ 40,i63,956 $ 38,010,770 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWlLL INDUSTRIES1 INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

B,as;s of Presentation 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accompanying financial statements reflect the consolidated financial statements of Gulfstream 
Goodwi!f Industries, Inc. ("Goodwill"), Gulfstream Goodwill Industries Foundation, Inc. ("Foundation"), 
and Ughthouse for the Blind of the Palm Beaches, Inc. (Lighthouse), (collectively the "Organization"}, 
for \/\Jhich Goodwill has both control and economic interest, as defined in Financlal Accounting 
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification {FASB ASC) 958-810, Consolidation, issued by 
the American Institute of Certified PubHc Accountants. All significant inter-organization accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting whereby revenue is recognized when earned, support is recognized 
when received, and expenses are recognized when the corresponding liability is incurred. 

Organjzation and Purpose 

Gulfstream Goodwi!I Industries, Inc. is a community seivice organization whose mission is to fund, 
design, and deliver vocational and training programs that serve people with disabilities and other 
barriers to employment. The goal of Goodwill's services is to assist those served in becoming an 
integral part of the local workforce and to lead independent lives. Goodwill's income is derived 
principally through the sale of contributed goods, and from funding · rl?ceived from various 
governmental resources. To ach!eve its mission, Goodwill is committed to being the following: 

0 A premier provider of quality rehabilitation, employment, and trainlng opportunlties for 
--- ::::::::: c.c:_:.:c=== _:_:..::.c ::c:c · c__:__ = :poople:witb.:OOfi:ierS-tao:emj3lay:um1tetl:lR:t::it 6c:UA:l!;-_ Ebt1i.t1.fl!(;;ll'-l 9,l.j:-}3:ltSiBBi:l!SS~_ +l:K6ili0t.:a. a:a:---================l 

0 Recognized as a community leader and partner, communicating closely and networking 
with key community groups to respond to ever-changing social problems and ensure wide 
use of community resources. 

0 A quality retaif er, offering high quality, economical and fashionable merchandise, in well 
maintained locations, within the communities Goodwill serves. 

0 A quality industrial work program, providing timely delivery of quality products and services 
to community businesses and industry. 

Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. serves Palm Beach, Martin, St. Lucie, Indian River, and 
Okeechobee counties in Southeast Florida and maintains administration facillties in West Palm 
Beach, Florida. 

Gulfstream Goodwill Industries Foundation, Inc. was formed on August 27, 2003, for the purpose of 
establishing an endowment to provide financial support and assistance to Goodwill. 

Lighthouse for the Blind of the Palm Beaches, Inc. was founded in 1946 to assist visually 
impaired persons to develop their capabilities to the fullest and to utilize them in the pursuits of 
life that are the right and privilege of all. The Lighthouse provides direct education and 
rehabilitation services to people who are blind or visually impaired in Palm Beach, Martin, St. 
Lucie, Indian River, and Okeechobee counties. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRlESi INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 
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'1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Organization's consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with FASS ASC 
95B-205, Presentation of Financial Statements. This standard requires the classification of the 
Organization's consolidated financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets; 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The 
three classifications of net assets are described below: 

c- Unrestricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets whose use is not 
restricted by donors, even though their use may be limited in other respects, such as by 
contract or by board designation. Changes in net assets arising from exchange transaction 
(except income and gains on assets that are restricted by donors or by law) are included in 
the unrestricted by cf ass. 

0 Temporarily restricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets whose use by 
the Organization has been limited by donors to either a later period of time, after a specified 
date, or for a specified purpose. 

0 Permanently restricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets that must be 
maintained by the Organization in perpetuity. Permanently restricted net assets increase 
when the Organization receives contributions for which donor-imposed restrictions limiting 
the Organization's use of an asset or its economic benefits neither expire with the passage 
of time nor can be removed by the Organization meeting certain requirements. 

FASS ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure, establishes a framework for measuring 
fair value and provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or lfabi!ities (level 1 measurement) 
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described below: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Organization has the 
ability to access. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
0 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
" Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 

markets; 
<> Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability; 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES1 INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

1. Summwy of Significant Accounting Policies. continued 

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, continued 
Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

0 Inputs that are deriv_ed principally from or corroborated by observable 
market data by correlation or other means. 

!f the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must 
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - [nputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be 
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value 
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the falr value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is signtficant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a 
particular input to the entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to 
the asset or liability. Adjustments to arrive at measurements based on fair value, such as costs to 
sell when measuring fair value less costs to sell, shall not be taken into account when determining 
the level of the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement is categorized. 

Financial instruments 

The Organization follows FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Dfaclosure, in disclosing 
the fair value of financial instruments. The Organization has a number of financial instruments, 

··--·-··- t-10:1=1B.::0.t='Nrnc.h-ar:e-beld-f.ord:~0ses-.;,...As~set..,:.fur;t0_:j9_&;AS5-ASC-S20-.=mal'.lag,2eum:1£1e'!:!ntt :!:!!:iag;·e2=======1 
estimated the fair value of these financial insfrumeDts as follows: · 

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other assets, accounts payable, arid accrued 
expenses - The carrying amounts reported In the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posltlon for 
these items approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these financial instruments. 

Investments - Investments are stated at fair value, based on quoted market prices of those 
investments. 

Derivative financial instrument - This instrument is valued at fair value determined by the 
Organization's bank, which used prevailing rates based on an estimate of the net present values of 
the resulting cash flows, relevant market data inputs, and assumptions of no unusual r:oarket 
conditions or forced liquidation. 

FA~B ASC 825, Financial Instruments, provides a fair value option election that allows entities to 
irrevocabf y elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for certain financial 
assets and liabilities. Changes in fair value for assets and liabilities for which the election Is made 
wm be recognized in earnings as they occur. The Organization's beneficial interest in trusts and 
estate has been selected for this fair value election. · 

-10-



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the 'Year Ended December 31, 2012 
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1. Summ,grv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Use of Estimates 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers money 
market accounts and short"term lnvestments with origlnal maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. However, cash and cash equivalents maintained by the Organization's 
investment managers are part of the Organization's long-term investment policy and are classified 
as investments. Cash and cash equivalents maintained in the beneficial interest in trusts and 
estate accounts are classified accordingly on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 
Designated cash represents cash funds held by a third party administrator under an agreement 
whereby the Organization is self-insuring its state unemployment obligation. These funds are 
deposited monthly with the administrator to fund a reserve for future unemployment payments. 

Investments 

Under FASB ASC 958-320 - Investments-Debt and Equity Securities, investments in marketable 
securities with readily determinable fair values are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated 
Stat~ment of fln~ncial Positi~n, with the a:nount of unrealized gai_n? .or losses on investments not 

· ···· · ··· -· ·- _ _:.:_=c..:.-=_:_· pr:e.v:roos.ly-reefl§flii'-ed~s·00wn-11:ht, - e- c-0 - c ct1v.1t1es 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due from various government agencies and vendors that 
contract with Goodwill for services. The Organization establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts 
based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends, and other 
information. As of December 31, 2012, the Organization's allowance for potentially uncollectible 
accounts receivable was approximately $70,000. 

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of utility and security deposits, prepaid insurance and rent, 
and intangible assets related to the closing costs of the various debt instruments: Supply inventory is 
also included, consisting of small general office and maintenance supplies which are stated at lower of 
cost or market. 

·-· ·----·-·--···---- ·----·-·-·----· ---- -· ······----·-·· 



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIESJ INC, 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Contributed Goods Inventory 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Contributed goods inventory consists of donor contributed goods, which are valued according to an 
estimate of fair value. This estimate considers that fair value is that portion of retail value which 
exceeds Goodwill's cost of transporting and processing the merchandise for sale. Goodwill follows 
the industry-wide practice of measuring contributed goods inventory based on an accepted model of 
excess value over cost of processing. Contributed goods received during the year are reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of Activmes. 

Note Receivabf e 

In 201 i, the Organization held a note receivable from the sale of the Lighthouse former operations 
building. The sale was financed by holding the mortgage and taking back a note receivable. The 
terms specified a down payment of $25,000 and monthly payments of principal and interest, based 
on 6.00% rate of interest and a 30-year amortization. The note called for an additional princfpal 
payment of $65,000 on March 10, 2016 and was scheduled to mature March 20, 202'1 with a 
balloon payment of $439,108. On January 6, 2012 the purchaser of the building paid the note off 
fn full. 

Land, Building, and Equipment 

Land, building, and equipment are recorded at cost, if purchased, or fair value, if contributed, less 
accumulated depreciat!on. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful asset lives, ranging from 3-30 years. Capital expenditures ln excess of $500 are capitalized and 

.. ----7---Elej;1reeiated~MainteBABGe-a0E17~epairn0st&areceX. . 

Beneficial Interest in Trusts and Estate 

Beneficial interest in trusts and estate represent spliHnterest agreements in which the Organization 
has been named the residual or income beneficiary of several irrevocable trust and unitrust 
agreements and an estate. The irrevocable trust agreements and estate are measured at fair value 
upon contribution or notification and at subsequent reporting dates. The terms of the unitrµst 
agreements require a promise by the trust to pay fixed amounts for a specified period of time to the 
income beneficiaries. The assets contributed pursuant to split-interest agreements and the associated 
liabilities are measured at fair value upon contribution and at subsequent reporting dates. The unitrust 
agreements are measured at fair value based upon the present value of future cash distributions, 
using discount rates prevalent at the date of the gift. 

A charitable remainder unitrust is a trust that pays the donor or other named income beneficiary a 
percentage of the fair market value of the trust assets as revalued annually for a term of years or one 
or more lives. At the end of the trust term, the remaining principal goes to the charities named in the 
trust agreement. The fair value of the Organization's interest in the trust was estimated based on the 
income beneficiary's life expectancy and a percentage payout rate. The Organization is a residual 
beneficiary under these instruments and is not the trustee; therefore, only the net estimated fair value 
to be received f s reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

-12-
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

1, Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Deferred Revenue 

NO~res TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCJAL STATEMENTS 

Deferred revenue represents funds received ln advance for Goodwill program services to be provided 
in the coming year. · 

Support and Revenues 

o Contributed Goods Store Sales and Saivage and Recycling 

Contributed goods store sales consists of the sale of donor contributed goods. Support is 
recognized upon sale, as an allocation of the overall retail price received based upon the same 
accepted model of excess processing value over cost, as described above. 

Salvage and recycling consists of the bulk sa!e of donated goods which have not otherwise 
been sold as contributed goods store sales. 

·~ Contributions 

The Organization follows FASB ASC 958-605, Revenue Recognition. In accordance with this 
standard, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently 
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions 
that are initially restricted as to use are required to be reported as temporarily restricted support and 
are later reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon expiration of the time restriction or to 
unrestricted support upon use . of the contribution in accordance with the restricted purpose. --·-------···_···==·-··__,3up1J01ffiatis-resfficreo4:lt-tfiefdonor-rs-repoHecfas·~a111ncrease1n11nreitrTeteel"'OOt=assets-=if .WfA:=· ====1 
restriction is satisfied or expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. 

All contributions are considered to be availabie for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by 
the donor. Contributions of goods for resale are recorded as revenue based upon the incremental 
increase in value added from Goodwill's program related expense and processes. 

o Employment, Training, and Contracts 

The Organization receives funding under various federal, state and local government programs 
and public grants. Employment, training, and contract revenues are recorded when performance 
occurs under the terms of the grant agreement. These program revenues are reflected under 
employment and training in the Consolidated Statement of Activlties. 

o Other Revenues 

o Goodwill established an on-line sales program (E-books) in which it sells books over the 
internet and these revenues are reflected as other revenues in the Consolidated Statement 
of Activities. 

o Goodwill operates a rental assistance program under the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD). Program participants are required to contribute a speclfled 
percentage of their individual income as rent; these amounts are reflected as other 
revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

1. Summary of Sjg__niijcant Accounting PoUcies. continued 

• Other Revenues, conUnued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

o Goodwili also provides management services to two other organizations: Lighthouse and 
Career Academy, a charter school, for which Goodwill acts as sponsor. The revenues from 
Lighthouse, a related party are eliminated during consolidation. Career Academy has a 
separate board and acts independently of the Organization. 

£-v:penses 

Expenses are summarized on a functional basis. Expenses that can be specifically identified with a 
functional activity are charged accordingly. The amount of time spent on the various functional 
categor1es by the employees are used to develop percentages which are used in allocating salary and 
related expenses and other expenses which cannot be specificaHy identified with a particular 
functional activity. 

income Taxes 

Goodwill, the Foundation, and Lighthouse are exempt from federal income taxes under Section 
601 ( c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and from state income taxes under similar provisions 
of the State of Florida Income Tax Code. The Organization has been classified as a publicly 
supported organization, which is not a private foundation under 509(a) of the Code. The Organization 
did not engage in any unrelated buslness activities during the year ended December 31, 2012, and 
accordingly there is no provision for income taxes reflected in the accompanying consolidated 
financla! statements. 

-----The-!:2.rganizationJo!Iow.s-~ASRASC,c7.4-0rAccour.ding fuwncertalnty_inJnc01na.T.:.axes,.Jbi:s_staqgau 
seeks to reduce· the diversity in practice associated · with certain aspects of measurement and 
recognition in accounting for income taxes. It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement 
attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position that an entity takes or 
expects to take in a tax return. An entity may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions 
that meet a "more likely than not'' threshold. The Organization assesses the income tax positions 
based on management's evaluation of the facts, circumstances, and informatlon available at the 
reporting date. The Organization uses the prescribed more likely than not threshold when making 
their assessment. There are currently no open Federal or State tax years under audit. 

Adverlising 

Goodwill expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense was approximately 
$115,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012, and is reflected as part of supplies and printing in 
the Consolidated Statement o{ Functional Expenses, 

Shipping Expense 

Shipping expense is incurred as a result of the E-books program. Goodwill expenses the cost of 
shipping as incurred. Total shipping expense is reported on the Consolidated Statement of 
Functional Expenses. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, ING. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 
~;; 

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Comparable Financial Information 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparable information 
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, from which the summarized 
information was derived. Certain 2011 amounts may have been reclassified to conform to 2012 
classifications, although any such reclassification would have no effect on the 2011 change in net assets. 

2. investments 

Investments as of December 31, 2012 consisted of the fotlowing, alt of which are measured on .a 
recurring basis as Level 1: 

Unrealized 
Goodwifl: Cost Fair Value Gain 
Mutual funds ~ 407,708 i 416,348 i 8,640 

Foundation: 
Cash and cash equivalents 202,110 202,110 
Exchanged-traded funds 98,230 105,227 6997 

- --- ·-----·------- ··-------· --- - 00$4-@ 3&7,%37 6 ------------ -·· 

$ 708,048 $ 723,685 $ 15,637 

3. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Goodwill Lighthouse Eliminations Total 
Due in less than one year $ 1,984,270 $ 31,157 $ (49,309) $ 1,966,118 Less allowance for 
uncollectible accounts 70,000 70000 

$ 1,914,270 !Ii 31,j57 31 (49,309) ~ 1,896,11!:l 

-15-
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 

5, 

6. 

Prepaid expenses and other assets as of December 31, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Goodwill Lighthouse Total 
Deposits $ 69,431 $ 480 $ 69,911 
Prepaid insurance 57,055 6,434 63,489 
Prepaid rents 82,956 2,687 85,643 
Prepaid worker's compensation 111,252 111,252 
Bond issue costs, net 116,709 116,709 
letter of credit fees, net 33,612 33,612 
Loan ciosing costs, net 16,447 16,447 
Supplies 19,811 4,858 24,669 
Other miscellaneous 45601 45 601 

$ 552,874 $ 14459 $ 567.333 

Lane!. Bui!dinq, and Eg_ufpment 

Land, building, and equipment as of December 31, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Goodwill Lighthouse Foundation Total 
Land $ 2,215,845 $ $ $ 2,215,845 
Building 6,635,946 61,626 6,697,572 
Building improvements 746,541 746,541 
leE_sabQkUrnp_rovements ... 3133515 3,133,515 . 
Automotive and communica-

tions equipment 1,642,308 26,650 1,668,958 
Fumlture and equipment, 

including assets under capital 
lease 4,775,955 50479 6950 4,833,384 

19,150,110 138,755 6,950 19,295,815 
less accumulated depreciation 9,948,226 121,002 6950 10,076,178 

$ 9,201.884 $ 17.753 $ $ 9,219,637 

Beneficial Interest in. Trusts and Estate 

Beneficial interest in trusts and estate as of December 31, 2012, consisted of several split interest 
agreements wherein Goodwill and Lighthouse are named beneficiary of several irrevocable trust and 
unitrust agreements and an estate. Two (2) of the irrevocable trusts will pay all of the annua[ income 
to Lighthouse in perpetuity. In addition, Goodwill is beneficiary of an estate which is estimated to 
settle within 2 years. · 

~16-
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the 'Year Ended December 31, 2012 

6, Beneficial Interest in Trusts and Estate, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fair values of beneficial interest in trusts and estate measured on a recurring basis as of December 
31, 2012 are as follows: 

Goodwill: Level2 Level3 Total 
Beneficial interests in irrevocable trusts and 
estate $ 191,283 $ 31,020 $ 222,303 

Charitable remainder unitrusts 118,365 118,365 
Bequest receivable 1401000 140,000 

331,283 149,385 480,668 
Lighthouse: 

Beneficial interests in irrevocable trusts and 
estate 514,017 31,020 545,037 

Charitable remainder unitrusts 293,466 293,466 
514017 324,486 838,503 

$ 845,300 $ 473.871 $ 1,319.171 

A reconciiiatlon of the Organization's Level 3 instruments for the year ended December 31, 2012 is 
provided below: 

Goodwill _ Lighthouse Total 
Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions 

$ 216,707 $ 383,377 $ 600,084 

Reclassifications 
NeF&t-1-aF1~fF-1tafE1e '··(~~2%} ·_· (~&,~~-: 
Balance, end of year $' 149,385 $ 324,486 $ 473,87j 

FASB ASC 820 r~quires disclosure of quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used to 
measure level 3 assets and liabilities. The following table provides information about Level 3 assets 
he[d as che.ritable remainder unitrust agreements: 

Valuatron Unobservable 
Goodwill: Fair Value Technigues ln12uts Range 

Charitable remainder Present value Life 
unitrust agreements $ 118,365 future expectancy ?years 

cash flows 

Commercial real Market Appralsal 
Estate 31,020 appraisal methodology 

149,385 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRlES1 INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

6. 

7. 

Beneficial Interest in Trusts and Estate, continued 
Valuation Unobservable 

Lighthouse: Fair Value Technigues ln12uts 
Charitable remainder Present value Ufe 

Lmitrust agreements $ 293,466 future expectancy 
cash flows 

Commercial real Market Appraisal 
Estate 31,020 appraisal Methodology 

324A86 

1l 473,8Z1 

Accrued Expenses 

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Acciued payroll and related payables 
Accrued NlSH fees 
Accrued employee PTO 
Accrued sales tax 
other miscellaneous accrued expenses 

Range 

7-13.5 years 

NIA 

$ '1,357,712 
26,522 
34,605 
63,607 
57 317 

$ 1.539.763 

8. Line of Credit 

Goodwill rand Foundation 

GoodwHI and Foundation have a combined commitment from a financial institution for a $1,000,000 
revolving line of credit secured by real estate, with mortgages on the properties located at 1280 W. 
Indiantown Road, Jupiter, Florida, and 1715 and 1710 E. Tiffany Drive, West Palm Beach, Florida. 
Interest only payments are due each month at the Bank's prime Interest rate, plus 2.5% {5.75% as of 
December 31, 2012). The interest rate shall never be less than 5.0%. Any unpaid principal balance 
p[us accrued interest is due in full July 30, 2013. There is no outstanding balance as of December 
31, 2012. 

9. Bond Pavable, Capital Leases, and Notes Payable 

A) Bond Payable 

On May ·1, 2006, Goodwill re-financed its industrtal development revenue bond (IDB) with a tax­
exempt adjustable mode industrial development revenue bond, both of which were issued by Palm 
Beach County. Florida. The bond has a floating interest rate; however, the interest rate is fixed for a 
period of 10 years at 4.40% under an interest rate swap agreement entered into with a financial 
institution, lnterest is payable monthly and principal is payable annually. 
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GULFSTREAl\11 GOODWILL INDUSTRIES1 INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

9. Bond' A-wable, Capital Leases, and Notes Payable, continued 

A) Bond Payable, continued 

The principal is payable according to the following schedule: 

2013 
20'!4 
2015 
20i6 
2017 
Thereafter 

NOTES Tb CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

$ 210,000 
220,000 
230,000 
250,000 
260,000 

3,100,000 
$ 4,270,000 

The boncl is collateralized by a fliSt mortgage on land and building with a book value of approximately 
$6,290,000, as of December 31, 2012. 

Loan Covenants 

Under the terms of the bond, Goodwill must maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio (FCCR) of at least 
1.25 to 1.00. For the year ended December 31, 2012, Goodwill had a FCCR service ratio of 4.53 to 
1.00. 

Goodwill must also maintain a ratio of senior liabilities to effective tangible net worth (net worth} of no 
more than 3.25 to 1.00. For the year ended December 31, 2012, Goodwill maintained a net worth 
ratio of 1.10 to 1.00. __ -_--_---------- -~--~------~ 

BJ Capital Leases 

Goodwill leases equipment for its Okeechobee Waterway contract. The capitalized cost of the 
equipment reflected in the fixed assets is approximately. $146,000. The lea.ses require monthly 
payments totaling $2,883 of ptincipal and interest with effective interest rates of 0% to 43.60%. The 
leases mature through May 2017. · · 

The following schedule illustrates future minimum lease payments under capital leases and the 
present value of net minimum lease payments: · 

T6tal minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less current maturities 
Obligations under capital leases, non-current maturities 

-19~ 

$ 

$ 

128,377 
1132 

127,245 
36531 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC, NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

9. Bond Payable, Capital Leases, and Notes Payable, continued 

CJ Notes Payable 

Goodwill: 
$1,250,000 note payable to a bank, at an annual interest rate of 6.80%, 
requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $8,751, collateralized by 
real estate. This note matures January 2015, with a balloon payment of 
approximately $'i ,044,700. 

$i ,500,000 note payable to a bank, at an annual interest rate of 7.00%, 
requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $13,565, collateralized by 
real estate. This note is based on a fifteen year amortization and matures 
June 2015, with a balloon payment of approximately $1,163,500. 

Less current maturity 

D) Future Maturities 

The future principal maturity payment schedules of Goodwill are as follows: 

Goodwill: · Capital Notes 

$ 1,108,581 

1,347.290 
2,455,871 

99,332 

$ 2.356.539 

Bond Lease Payable Total 
2013 $ 210,000 $ 36,531 $ 99,332 $ 345,863 

· ·-----_· -_··_··-=--=---=-·-------....-=m-a=· ========~2~20;0001===·:::225i--900=========1,0~53;c1::a.-2:::::=· -·=====' 
2015 230,000 26,999 2,250,406 2,507,405 
2016 250,000 26,999 276,Q~Q 
2017 260,000 9,717 269,717 
Thereafter 3,100,000 3,100,000 

$ 4,270,000 $ 127,245 $ 2.455.871 $ 6,853.116 

10, Derivative Financial Instrument 

The Organization's derivative financial instrument consisted of an interest rate swap measured at fair 
va[ue on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2012: 

Goodwill: Level3 
Interest rate swap $ 568.785 

-20-
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GULfSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRiES, IN·c. 

For the :rear Ended December 31, 2012 

10. Derivative F!nancjaf Instrument, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

F ASB ASC 820 requires disclosure of quantitative infonnation about the unobservable inputs used to 
measure Level 3 assets and liabilities. The following table provides the following information about 
Levei 3 Interest rate swap Hability: 

Valuation Unobservable 
Goodwiff: Fair Value Technigues lnQuts Range 

Third Party Interest rate 
lnterest rate swap $ 568!785 Valuation volatility variable% 

Goodwill entered into an interest rate swap arrangement with Wells Fargo Bank {formerly Wachovia 
Banl<) on its tax-exempt adjustable mode industrial development revenue bond series 2006 effective 
June 1, 2006 that in effect fixed the interest rate on Goodwill's long-term bank note payable at 
4.40%), The arrangement is scheduled to expire on July 1, 2016. The notional amount of the contract 
as of December 31. 20i2 was $4,270,000. 

Goodwill's purpose in entering into the swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest 
rate increases on the related variable rate debt and not to hold the instrument for trading purposes. 
Accordingly, the swap agreement, which is a derivative financial instrument, is classified as a cash 
flow hedge. As such, the derivative financial instrument is reflected on the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position at its estimated fair value .. Because the hedge is considered effective, the results 
of the swap arrangement are included in interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of 
Activities. The effect for the year ended December 31, 2012 was to increase Interest expense by 
approximately $190,000. The liqu1dafing value of the swap as of December 31, 2012 was 
approximately $569,000. This amount would be owed to the bank if Goodwill were to terminate the -------~--agree.me.-_- ---

A reconciliation of this Level 3 instrument for the year ended December 31, 2012 is provided 
below: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Net unrealized gain on derivative financial instrument 

Balance, end of year 

11. ,Employee Benefit Plans 

$ 

$ 

653,207 
(84,422) 
568,785 

Goodwill maintains a qualified thrift plan under section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under 
this plan, Goodwill, at its discretion, will make a matching contribution on the employee's behalf equal 
to 100% of the first 4% of employee's allowable contribution. Goodwill contributed approximately 
$198,000 to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2012. In addition, Goodwill maintained a 
457(b) deferred compensation plan; this plan was terminated during 2012. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODV\/ILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Vear Ended December 31, 2012 

11, Em·,ofc.,ree Benefit Plans, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Goodwill also provides a deferred compensation plan for a management executive. The.agreement 
provides for annua! contributions to a "Rabbi Trust" arrangement for each year including 2012. The 
executive vested in this plan on December 31, 2012. Goodwill contributed approximately $77,600 to 
this plan for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

'/2, Related Party Transactions 

During 2012, Goodwill advanced funds to various parties that are related by common management 
and/or board members. Goodwill advanced approximately $58·1,000 to Career Academy, a charter 
school which was sponsored by Goodwill and is related to the broader mission of Goodwili. The 
charter school owed Goodwlll approximately $83,000, as of December 31, 2012. Goodwill also paid 
Florida Goodwill Association (FGA), a membership association with a common officer, approximately 
$15,000 for dues and owed an additlonal $5,000 for dues, at year end. In addition, during 2012 
GoodwHl paid Goodwill lndustiies lntemational (GIi), an affiliated national organization, approximately 
$185;000: $173,000 for annual dues, $10,000 for a contribution, and $2,000 for miscellaneous 
expenses. 

Goodwiil also received payments from various related parties during 2012. Goodwill received 
approximately $180,000 from the charter school as reimbursement for rent which was part of the 
advances referenced above. In addition, the charter school reimbursed approximately $450,000 of 
the expenses referenced above over the course of 2012. 

__ :::...:_:-_ ____ .:_13.,____Commitments 

As part of its cash management activities, Goodwill has issued irrevocable standby letters of credit to 
utilities, vendors, and landlords. By using letters of credit in lieu of placing cash deposits, Goodwill 
has better use of its working capital. Currently, Goodwill has approximately $470,000 issued under 
these agreements. 

Goodwill leases storefront facilities, residential units and vehicles under numerous operating leases 
that expire through 2044 (including renewal options). Rent expense incurred for the facilities under 
these leases, which is reflected as part of occupancy in the consolidated financial statements, is 
approximately $7,322,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The storefront leases contain 
renewal options varying from one to fourteen years, and rent escalation clauses ranging from three 
percent to six percent per year. 

Total minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2012 
are approximately: · 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 
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$ 8,013,700 
7,283,200 
7,500,200 
7,603,400 
7,894,500 

97,664,500 

$135.959.500 

- ·- ----- --·-····-- -·· - --·--··------·--·- -·· ··-·--·-- -·· ---



GULFS"rREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

14. Concentrations and Contingencies 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

At various times during the year, the Organization had more funds on deposit at ftnanc1al institutions 
than the $250,000 currently insUied by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Management 
re,gularly monitors the financial condition of its banking institution, along with its cash balances, and 
in so doing, tries to keep this potential risk to a minimum. In management's opinion, its cash 
management does not represent unusual risk. As of December 31, 2012, cash deposits exceeded 
federa[ly insured limits by approximately $2,846,000. 

With respect to accounts receivable, Goodwiil does not appear subject io significant credit risk as its 
principal account debtors are Palm Beach County DiVision of Human Services, which accounts for 
approximately 28% of the outstanding balance, State of Florida Vocational Rehabilitation, which 
accounts for approximately 11% of the outstanding balance and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
which accounts for approximately 12% of the outstanding balance. The remaining balance of its 
accounts receivable is owed by a variety of organizations or companies. 

Goodwill is involved in various legal actions arising in the nOimal course of business. !n 
management's opinion, such matters will not have a material effect upon the financial position of 
Goodwill. 

15. Net Assets Restrictions 

As o'f December 31, 2012, temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of: 

Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted _ Total - -~- --·--- . ---- --~==-=·-=========~t,§~§::=~§!;:~~S::::~~§5~====:=I GooaWI/i: 

Time restrictions 
Split interest agreements 

Lighthouse: 
Time restrictions 
Split interest agreements 

16. Subsequent £vents 

Date of Management Evaluation 

$ 480,668 $ 

567,806 
$ 1.048.474 $ 

$ 480,668 

270,697 838,503 
270,697 $ 1,319.171 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 28, 2013, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that there were no further 
disclosures required to be presented in these financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCJALSTATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITJNG STANDARDS 

The Board o-f DirBctors of 
Gulfstream Gooclwill lndustiies, Inc. 

· West Palm Beach, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consol!dated financial statements of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial positron as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and function al ,9xpenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 28, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the =- -~=- ---,fi1:1a~iiatf'-.JneBts,---:-0t-1t net fe1: taf½~HFpGsB-----0:b-O-xi::,ressing at1~p!Aiol'.l-On. tl:ie-.e.ffecttv..ene. Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that-a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough·to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the Hmited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to. identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance .about whether Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
ceiiain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose o~: this Report 

The purpose of this report f s solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose. 

4/ //. / • .#/ 
e;~_,,t:ru~ e;t. 

West Palm Beach, Florida 
May 28, 20'13 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY 0MB CIRCULAR A~133 

The Board of Directors of 
Gulfstream Goodvvili Industries, Inc. 
West Palm Beach, Florida 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Circular AM133 Compliance Supplement that could nave a direct 
and material effect on each of Gulfstream Goodwill industries, lnc.'s major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2012. Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s major federal programs are 
identified ln the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compllance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

- . ----· -- -- .. ------------ --- - -~-
Our responsibility is to express an opinion. on compliance for eacfi of GUlfstreali'lGoodWilHncras I 

lnc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards 
and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompllance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Gulfstream Goodwill 
Industries, lnc.'s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012, 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Gulfstream GoodwiH Industries, Inc. is responsible for establlshing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A~·l33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Gulfstream Goodv\,m Industries, !nc.'s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or c,ombinatlon of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wm not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over comp/jance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance wtth a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, --- - ------~--materral::weakFres-~73~1:lat-=l=rav-e=~ot-~~tl+I·-_@. ~==================l 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 0MB Circular A~133. Accordingly, this report is not suttable for any other purpose. 

~~ <"I- 7h$UU, ~Cl 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
May 28, 2013 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the V'ear Ended December 31, 2012 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDJTORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal controi over financial reporting: 
o Material weakness( es) identified? 

c Significant deficiencies Identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
e IV!ateria! weakness(es) identified? 

{, Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
of major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
ln accordance with section 501 (a) of Circular AN133? 

ldentHJcation of major programs: 
=====•::::;c::;;:F;:;;;:D=;::A Number 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster: 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs: 

Auditee quaHfied as a low-risk auditee? 

N28-

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

Unqualified 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Unqualified 

No 

.14:23·· 

Supportive Housing 
Assistance 

$300,000 

Yes 



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

SECTION If - f=JNANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

There ar,e no findings reported for the year endsd December 31, 2012. 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

There are no findings or questioned costs reported for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

CORRECTIVE AC-rtON PLAN 

There is no corrective action plan required, as there were no findings or questioned costs for the year 
ended December 31. 2012. 

PRIOR. YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no prior audit findings for the year ended December 31, 2011, relative to federal awards 
requiring acUon on the part of the auditee for that fiscal year. 

---=====-:._____:==c===============================c:::! 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Contract 
Federal/State Agency, CFDA Grant Federal 

Pass-through Entity Number Number Expenditures 

Federal Awards: 
U.S. Department of Labor: 

Workforce Alliance - Out of School Youth 17.259 Sii-003 $ 65,042 
Workforce Alliance~ WTP!WIMAJTW V11-070 /V12-070 66,063 
WOikforce Alllance - Good Jobs Sii-0038 193,281 

324,386 

U.S. Department of Justice: 
Offender Re-entry Program R2011-0538 & 

.R2013-0076 97,266 

U.S.Department of Housing and 
Urban Development: 

Project Succeed: 
Supportive housing 14.235 FL0289B4D051003 834,740 
Supportive housing 14.235 FL028984D051104 155,523 

Project Succeed #3 
Supportlve housing 14.235 FL036784D051001 9,770 
Supportive housing 14.235 FL0367B4O051102 122,487 

Project Success: FL029284D050802 
Support services 14.235 R2011-1990 66,492 
Stlp-portivec::hoosmy -=1-4".¾-05 le?2~4'--1:991 2-8-- -

New Avenues 14.235 Fl0347B4D050900 195,632 
1,673,042 

$ 2,094,694 

Other Financial Assistance: Revenue Expenditures 
Palm Beach County - Lewis Center $ 760,464 $ 578,041 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The above schedule includes the federal award and other financial assistance of Gulfstream Goodwill 
Industries, Inc., and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule 
is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therfore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts in, or used in the preparation of, the basic consolidated financial statements. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. HUD-STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES DATA 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Project Project 
Succeed#3 Succeed #4 

REVENUES: 
5120 Rent revenues $ 18,996 $ 
5121 Tenant assistance payments 132,257 

51O0T Tota! rent revenue 151,253 
5990 Miscellaneous revenue 
5000T Total revenue 151,253 

EXPENSES: 
6250 Other renting expenses - rent payments 82,270 
6310 Payroll 30,048 
6311 Office expenses 5,872 
6350 Audit expense 900 
6360 T e!ephone expenses 522 
6263T Totai administrative expenses 119,612 

6450 Electric 
6451 Water 

6400T Total utilities expenses 

6510 Operating and maintenance- payroll 12,669 
6515 Operating and maintenance- supplies 4,633 
6520 Building maintenance and repair 326 
6525 Garbage and trash removal 
e-e-7s===verucl'Efarrd--m'amt-el'faruie---eqa+fm'I~ 

6500T 

6711 
6720 
6723 

6700T 

6000T 

5060N 

3250 

operation and repairs 2,596 

Total operating and maintenance expenses 20,224 

Payroll taxes 4,500 
Property and liability insurance 1,608 
Health insurance and other employee benefits 5,309 

Total taxes and insurance 11,417 

Total costs of operations before depreciation 151.253 

Operating income (loss) 

Change in total net assets from operations $ $ 

See independent auditor's report. 
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84,063 
990,263 

1,074,326 

1,074,326 

624,786 
207,613 

39,005 
6,100 

14,943 

892,447 

44,183 
34.486 

32,082 

1i0,751 

26,498 
13,272 
31,358 

71,128 

1,074,326 

Project New 
Success Avenues 

$ 51,181 $ 14,890 
354,890 195,631 

406,071 210,521 
34,452 

440,523 210,521 

103,500 69,457 
224,272 46,906 

341 1,142 
1,000 

14,231 i,342 

343,344 118,847 

20,685 
11,232 

31,917 

49,003 
7,284 16,068 
1,330 
2,619 

4,869 2,835 

16,102 67,906 

28,966 9,487 
6,625 2,750 

13,569 11,531 

49,160 23,768 

440,523 210,521 

$ $ 

-- ----- -··-- ______ , ________ .,. ______________ -------------·-·-------



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. HUD-STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Project Project Project New 
Succeed #3 Succeed#4 Success Avenues 

Cash flows from operating 
activities: 

s-1200-030 Other operating receipts $ 151,253 $ 1,074,326 $ 440,523 $ 210,521 
S1200-040 Total receipts 151,253 1,074,326 440,523 210,521 

S1200-050 Adminstrative 1'i9,612 892,447 343,344 118,847 
s-1200-090 Utilities 31,917 
81200-i0O Operating and maintenance 20,224 '110,751 16,102 67,906 
$1200-150 Miscellaneous taxes and 

insurance 11,417 71,128 49,160 23,768 
S1200-230 Total disbursements 151,253 1,074,326 440,523 210,521 

S1200-240 Net cash provided by 
operating acttvites 

Si200-470 Met increase in cash and 
cash equivalents 

81200-480 Cash-beginning of year 

81200T Cash-end of year $ $ $ $ 

See independent auditor's report. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF 

As of December 31, 2012 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Contributed goods inventory 

Total current assets 

Cash, designated 

Land, buiiding and equipment, net 

Beneflca! interest in trusts 
and estate 

Total assets 

L!ABlUT!ES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Current portion o capita eases, 
notes and bond payable 

Total current liabilities 

Capital leases and notes payable 

Derivative financial instrument 

Bond payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Goodwill Ll~hthouse Foundation 

$ 2,155,728 $ 1,052,853 $ 317,i93 

416,348 307,337 

1,914,270 31,157 

552,874 14,459 

2,570,944 

7,610,164 1,098,469 624,530 

271,937 

9,201,884 17,753 

480,668 838,503 

$ 17,564,653 $ 1,954,725 $ 624,530 -

$ 493,625 $ 49,530 $ 

1,539,705 58 

345,863 

2,379,193 49,588 

2,447,253 

568,785 

4,060,000 

9,455,231 49,588 

8,109,422 1,905,137 624,530 

$ 17,564,653 $ 1,954,725 $ 624,530 

See independent auditor's report. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION 

Eliminating 
Entry Totafs 

$ $ 3,525,774 

723,685 

(49,309} '1,896,118 

567,333 

2,570,944 

(49,309} 9,283,854 

271,937 

9,219,637 

1,319,171 

$ {49,309) $ 20,094,599 

$ (49,309) $ 493,846 

1,539,763 

345,863 

(49,309) 2,379,472 

2,447,253 

568,785 

4,060,000 

{49,309) 9,455,510 

10,639,089 

$ {49,309} $ 20,094,599 



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF 
ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 311 2012 

Eliminafing 
Support and revenues: Goodwill Lighthouse Foundation Entry Totals 

Support: 
Contributed goods store sales $ 28,631,671 $ $ $ $ 28,631,671 
Salvage and recycling 1,516,879 1,516,879 
Contributions and bequest 329,615 300,095 73,469 703,179 

Total support 30,478,165 300,095 73,469 30,851,729 
Revefiues: 

Employment and training 5,673,710 408,270 6,081,980 
Contrncts 3,982,750 3,982,750 
Investment income 10,205 3,131 4,741 18,077 
Gain on disposal of assets 12 12 
Realized and unrealized gain 
(loss) on investments 20,012 185 5,718 25,915 

Change in value of beneficial 
interest in trusts and esiate 24,356 50,335 74,691 

Other revenues: 
E-books 345,360 345,360 
Participant rents 212,668 212,668 
Adminislrative fee 1,012,443 (611,592) 400,851 
Miscellaneous 40,720 7,302 48,022 
Total revenues 11,322,236 469,223 10,459 (611,592} 11,190,326 
Total support and revenues 41,800,401 769,318 83,928 {611,592} 42,042,055 

Expenses: 
Salary and other related expenses 425,071 (425,071) 24,149.404 
Bad debt expense 55 50,720 

---·- . -----·- ~ ------- Bai:ik--and-0Il'.J.er-fee 395 1329 . 10440 
Contractual payment to Goodwill 
Interest 178,301 178,301 
Meetings 60,566 9,002 (139) 69,429 
Membership dues 197,835 3,848 201,683 
Store discounts and other 111,621 4,522 (4,522) 111,621 
Occupancy 10,103,260 90,917 (75,930) 10,118,247 
Postage 131,681 5,442 (1,713) 135,410 
Professional fees and contract 
seivlces 870,923 85,164 559 (66,569) 890,077 

Shipping and freight 10,035 10,035 
Specific assistance to clients and 
organizations 6,002 17,484 . 23,486 

Supplies and printing i,139,538 54,523 (6,689) 1,'187,372 
Telephone 549,854 10,000 (2,400) 557,454 
Transportation 1,393,046 29,883 (28,559) 1,394,370 
Depr€ciation and amortization 970,915 11,030 981,945 

Total expenses 40,024,824 748,836 1,888 (611,592} 40,163,956 
Other gain: 

Gain on derivative 
financial instrument 84,422 84,422 

Change in net assets $ 1,859,999 $ 20,482 $ 82,040 $ $ 1,962,521 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc 

1715 Tiffany Drive East 
West Palm Beach, FL 33407 
Tel: 561.848.7200 
Fax: 561 .848.0346 
TDD: 561.848.3806 
www.gulfstreamgoodwill.com 

HUD Project No: . 
Project Succeed: FL0289B4D051003 and FL089B4D051104 

Project Succeed #3: FL.036784D051001 and FL0367B4D051102 
Project Success: FL0292B4D051104 

New Avenues: FL0347B4D050900 

CERTIFICATION OF PROJECT OWNER 

We hereby certi~/ that we have examined the accompanying financial statements and supplemental 

data of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc., for the HUD Projects listed above and, to the best of our 

knowledge and belief, the same are accurate and complete. 

Maiv1n Tam::k;lrmstd'emre · 
May28,20'13. 
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-J -J-J INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
West Palm Beacr,, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Gulfstream Good\ivill 
Industries, Inc. (a Florida not-for-profit corporation) as of December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated 
statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses, for the year then ended. These consolidated 
financial statements are the responsibility of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. The 
prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, 
lnc.'s 2010 consolidated financial statements (see Note 1 for explanation of changes) and, in our original 
report datecl lVlay 25, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial 
statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United· States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial.statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s 

==-='-'--=·-=irrtemal=oontrol=0V8F#oo;19:eral=r~m~ffiftly;==w~-xprescs=rtcr=s:a-ei'Fffpffiicm.·•·.Afl'-i,itiefit=atso.======= 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. as of December 31, 
2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June. 4, 2012, 
on our consideration of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests o-f its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of 
our audit. 

--~---- ··- ·---------



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opm1on on the basic consolidated financial 
statements of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying supplemental 
schedules on pages 27-28 as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are also not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the~ auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the 
consolidated ·financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted ln t1e United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated 
in :011! m2terfE1i respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

West Palm Beach, Florida 
June 4, 2012 

------·----·---- ---------------



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION 

As of December 3·u, 2011 (with comparable totals for 2010) 

Temporarily Permanently 2011 2010 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Totals Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,496,984 $ $ $ 2,496,984 $ 1,812,452 
Investments 494,390 494,390 179,142 
Accounts and bequests 

receivable, net 1,550,100 1,550,100 1,607,166 
Note receivable, current 7,988 7,988 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 498,731 498,731 520,275 
Contributed £1oods inventory 2,294,239 2,294,239 2,286,829 

Total current assets 7,342,432 7,342,432 6,405,864 

Note receivable, non-current 611,260 611,260 
Land, building, and equipment, net 9,116,835 9,116,835 9,403,316 
Benefical interest in trusts 833,782 270,697 1,104,479 967,264 

Total assets $ 17,070,527 $ 833,782 $ 270,697 $ 18,175,006 $ 16,776,444 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 349,502 $ $ $ 349,502 $ 596,217 
Accrued expenses 1,456,493 1,456,493 1,341,131 
Deferred revenue 3,322 3,322 4,379 
Current portion of capital leases, 
notes and bond payable 302,824 302,824 434,852 

- -- - -----==Fotal=cw:r-E>l+i.=l-iabiJities- - _ _ -~ 2;1-12;-:141 q1:cl:2~'44 ·2.~~ 

Capital leases ancl notes payable 2,463,090 2,463,090 2,561,976 
Derivative financial instrument 653,207 653,207 580,442 
Bond payable 4,270,000 4,270,000 4,470,000 

Total liabilities 9,498,438 9,498,438 9,988,997 

Net assets 7,572,089 833,782 270,697 8,676,568 6,787,447 
Total liabilities and net assets $ 17,070,527 $ 833,782 $ 270,697 $ 18,175,006 $ 16,776,444 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 (with comparable totals for 2010) 

Temporarily Permanently 2011 2010 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Totals Totals 

Support and revenues: 
Support: 

Contributed goods store sales $ 26,775,914 $ $ $ 26,775,914 $ 25,058,224 
Salvage and recycling 1,427,552 1,427,552 1,330,717 
Contributions 720,304 173,179 893,483 438,500 

Total support 28,923,770 173,179 29,096,949 26,827,441 

Revenues: 
Employment and training 5,181,723 5,18·1,723 5,872,343 
Contracts 4,213,777 4,213,777 4,152,175 
Investment income 42,284 42,284 10,295 
Gain on disposal of assets 463,872 463,872 11,998 
Realized and unrealized gain 

(loss) on investments (15,159) (15,159) 2,581 
Change in vaiue of beneficial 

interest in trusts (10,030) (25,934) (35,964) 7,957 
Other revenues 1,025,174 1,025,174 1,039,939 

Total revenues 10,911,671 {10,030) (25,934) 10,875,707 11,097,288 

Total support and revenues 39,835,441 163,149 (25,934) 39,972,656 37,924,729 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Vocational and rehabilitation 34,147,177 34,147,177 33,443,159 
Supporting services: 

- · · ===rlllanagemenfancfgeneral----. 3~a=3~ 3~~©:-~-;1=22 . 
Fundraising 31,522 31,522 36,884 

Total expenses 38,010,770 38,010,770 36,921,165 

Other loss: 
Loss on derivative 
· financial instrument {72,765} {72,765} {57,909} 

Change in net assets 1,751,906 163,149 (25,934) 1,889,121 945,655 

Net assets, be!~inning of year 5,820,183 670,633 296,631 6,787,447 5,841,792 

Net assets, end of year $ 7,572,089 $ 833,782 $ 270,697 $ 8,676,568 $ 6,787,447 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 (with comparable totals for 2010) 

2011 2010 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash received from support and revenues $ 38,971,139 $ 38,176,218 
Cash paid for program and supporting services (36,705,796) (35,578,441) 
Investment income 42,283 10,294 
Interest paid (393,755) (441,575) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,913,872 2,166,496 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from note rnceivab!e 5,752 
Purchase of equipment (498,770) (447,405) 
Proceeds from sale of land, building, and equipment 25,000 3,600 
Purchase of investments (414,544) (73,205) 
Proceeds from redemption of investments 78,183 68,291 
Proceeds from beneficial interests in trusts 5,956 83,160 

Net cash used in investing activities (798,423) (365,559) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Payment on line of credit (681,834) 
Proceeds from capital leases and notes payable 112,249 
Payment on capital leases and notes payable (240,917) (383,504) 
Payment on bond payable (190,000) (180,000) 

Net cash used in financing activities (430,917) (1,133,089) 
Change in cash 684,532 667,848 . --------

---

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,812,452 1,144,604 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending of year $ 2,496,984 $ 1,812,452 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GUlFSTREJ.\M GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 (with comparable totals for 2010) 

2011 2010 
Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Change in net assets $ 1,889,121 $ 945,655 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 975,509 952,627 
Gain on disposal of assets (463,872) (11,998) 
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments 15,159 (2,581) 
Change in value of beneficial internst in trusts 35,964 (7,957) 
Non-cash contributions (344,027) 
Provision for bad clebt 77,880 16,886 
Loss on derivative financial instrument 72,765 57,909 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts and bequests receivable (20,814) 497,775 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (183,995) (111,784) 
Contributed goods inventory (7,410) (193,252) 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable (246,715) (205,086) 
Accrued expenses 115,362 248,507 
Deferred revenue (1,054) (20,205) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,913,872 $ 2,166,496 

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: 
Non-cash donation of vehicle $ 61,406 ·---- •:-"-----:---~--

Non-cash donation of hardware and software $ 282,621 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAlVI GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 (with comparable totals for 2010) 

Program Services Supporting Services 
Vocational and Management 2011 2010 
Rehabilitation and General Fundraising Totals Totals 

Salaries $ 16,670,144 $ 1,949,221 $ 10,631 $ 18,629,996 $ 17,943,388 
Employee benefits 1,255,581 154,942 1,050 1,411,573 1,457,770 
Payroll taxes ancl related 2,161,653 205,883 1,194 2,368,730 2,099,260 

Total salaries and other related 
expenses 20,087,378 2,310,046 12,875 22,410,299 21,500,418 

Bad debt expense 77,880 77,880 16,886 
Bank and other fees 52,246 48,269 566 101,081 109,439 
Interest 4,846 179,629 184,475 224,228 
Meetings 10,313 27,91(:l 38,229 38,045 
Membership dues 13,722 184,414 198,136 182,360 
Store discounts and other 199,043 131,682 330,725 271,008 
Occupancy 9,659,653 184,199 458 9,844,310 9,410,114 
Postage 136,221 3,479 12,248 151,948 113,459 
Professional i'ees and contract 
services 654,249 128,921 5,064 788,234 1,324,999 

Shipping and freight 2,644 857 3,501 23,576 
Specific assistance to clients 
and orgc:1nizations 13,187 21,872 35,059 15,162 

Supplies and printing 909,235 125,191 236 1,034,662 1,025,127 
Telephone 480,322 81,315 561,637 553,220 
Transportation 1,196,001 79,009 75 1,275,085 1,160,497 
Depreciation an.clamo.ctization 650,237 _ 325~2Z J:5.5~2.@27 _ 

Total expenses $ 34,147,177 $ 3,832,071 $ 31,522 $ 38,010,7.70 $ 36,921,165 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accompanying financial statements reflect the consolidated financial statements of Gulfstream 
Goodwill Industries, Inc. ("Goodwill"), Gulfstream Goodwill Industries Foundation, Inc. ("Foundation"), 
and Lighthouse for the Blind of the Palm Beaches, Inc. (Lighthouse), (collectively the "Organization"), 
for which Goodwill has both control and economic interest, as defined in Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) 958-810, Consolidation, issued by 
the American institute of Certified Public Accountants. All significant inter-organization accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting whereby revenue is recognized when earned, support is recognized 
when received, and expenses are recognized when the corresponding liability is incurred. 

Organization and Purpose 

Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. is a community service organization whose mission is to fund, 
design, and deliver vocational and training programs that serve people with disabilities and other 
barriers to employment. The goal of Goodwill's services is to assist those served in becoming an 
integral part of the local workforce and to lead independent lives. Goodwill's income is derived 
principally through the sale of contributed goods, and from funding received from various 
governmental resources. To achieve its mission, Goodwill is committed to being the following: 

® A premier provider of quality rehabilitation, employment, and training opportunities for 
people with barriers to employmeot and_ indepeod~::mce._ 

. - - . . - . - -~ - - . - - - - - - --- .. - ----- - . -• Recognized as a community leader and partner, communicating closely and networking 
with key community groups to respond to ever-changing social problems and ensure wide 
use of community resources. 

11 A quality retailer, offering high quality, economical and fashionable merchandise, in well 
maintained locations, within the communities Goodwill seNes. 

• A quality industrial work program, providing timely delivery of quality products and seNices 
to community businesses and industry. 

Goodwill serves Palm Beach, Martin, St. Lucie, Indian River, and Okeechobee counties in Southeast 
Florida. Goodwill maintains administration facilities in West Palm Beach, Florida. 

The Gulfstream Goodwill Industries Foundation, Inc. was formed on August 27, 2003, for the purpose 
of establishing an endowment to provide financial support and assistance to Goodwill. 

Lighthouse for" the Blind of the Palm Beaches, Inc. was founded in 1946 to assist visually 
impaired persons to develop their capabilities to the fullest and to utilize them in the pursuits of 
life that are the right and privilege of all. The Lighthouse provides direct education and 
.rehabilitation services to people who are blind or visually impaired in Palm Beach, Martin, St. 
Lucie, Indian River, and Okeechobee counties. 

-8-
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation 

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Organization's consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with FASB ASC 958-205, Presentation of Financial Statements. This standard requires the classification of the Organization's consolidated financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

c Unrestricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets whose use is not 
restricted by donors, even though their use may be limited in other respects, such as by 
contract or by board designation. Changes in net assets arising from exchange transaction 
( except income and gains on assets that are restricted by donors or by law) are included in 
the unrestricted by class. 

0 Temporarily restricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets whose use by 
the Organization has been limited by donors to either a later period of time, or after a 
specified date, or for a specified purpose. 

® Permanently restricted net assets - this classification includes those net assets that must be 
maintained by the Organization in perpetuity. Permanently restricted net assets increase 
when the. Organization receives contributions for which donor-imposed restrictions limiting 
the Organization's use of an asset or its economic benefits neither expire with the passage 
of time nor can be removed by the Organization meeting certain requirements. 

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 

--- -:-=:FA-sB=,1IBc'=8262'i~surements anct=Blsclosttro;--establtshes=a=tramework · 101 measuring fair value and provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy-under FASS ASC 820-1 Oare described below: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identic::al assets or liabilities in active markets that the Organiz-ation has the 
ability to access. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
" Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 

markets; 
" Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability; 

-9-

.. ----- -------- -· -------- ··----···--·•· ------ --- -·--·--··-- -- _, ___ _ 



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary: of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, continued 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

l) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 
market data by correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input 
must be observable for substantiaiiy the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques 
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Financial Instruments 

FASB ASC 820-10 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and 
expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. The standard does not require any new 
fair value measurements, but its application may, for some entities, change current practice. 
Changes to current practice stem from the revised definition of fair value and the application of this 
definition within the framework established by FASB ASC 820-10. 

The Organization has a number of financial instruments, none of which are held for tradfrig 
purposes. As set forth in FASB ASC 820-10, management has estimated the fair value of these 
financial instruments as follows: 

Investments ·- Investments are stated at fair value, based on quoted market prices of those 
investments. 

Derivative financial instrument - This instrument is valued at fair value determined by the 
Organization's bank, which used prevailing rates based on an estimate of the net present values of 
the resulting cash flows, relevant market data inputs, and assumptions of no unusual market 
conditions or forced liquidation. 

FASB ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a fair value option election that allows entities 
to irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for certain 
financial assets and liabilities. Changes in fair value for assets and liabilities for which the election 
is made will be recognized in earnings as they occur. The Organization's beneficial interest in 
trusts has been selected for this fair value election. 

-10-



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Em:led December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Use of Estimates 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The preparadon of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in tile United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers money market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. However, cash and cash equivalents maintained by the Organization's investment managers are part of the Organization's long-term investment policy and are classified as investments. Cash and cash equivalents maintained in the beneficial interest in trust accounts are classified accordingly on the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Investments 

Under FASB ASC 958-320 - Investments-Debt and Equity Securities, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are reported at their fair values in the consolidated statement of financial position, with the amount of unrealized gains or losses on investments not previously recognized shown in the consolidated statement of activities. 

Accounts and Bequests Receivable 

Accounts rece1vabIe:cons1sts of amounts dffe frcim-vancius government agencies and vendors that contract with Goodwill for services. Lighthouse has a bequest receivable from an estate as of December 31, 2011. The receipt of these funds is expected within the next fiscal year; therefore, no adjustment to the present value has been reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The Organization establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends, and other information. As of December 31, 2011, the Organization's allowance for potentially uncollectible accounts receivable was approximately $107,000. 

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of utility and security deposits, prepaid insurance and rent expense, and intangible assets related to the closing costs of the various debt instruments. Supply inventory is also included, consisting of small general office and maintenance supplies which are stated at lower of cost or market. 

-11-



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Contributed Goods inventory 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Contributed goods inventory consists of donor contributed goods, which are valued according to an 
estimate of fair value. This estimate considers that fair value is that portion of r.etail value which 
exceeds Goodwill's cost of transporting and processing the merchandi$e for sale. During 2009, the 
Organization changed the process of estimating the fair value of contributed goods inventory. 
Goodwill fo!lo'.vs the industry-wide practice of measuring contributed goods inventory based on an 
accepted model of excess value over cost of processing. Contributed goods received during the year 
are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. 

Note Receivable 

The Organization's note receivable is carried at face value. During the year, Lighthouse sold its 
former operations building, and financed the sale by holding a mortgage with terms that specify a 
down payment of $25,000 and monthly payments of principal and interest of $3,747. The note 
calls for an additional principal payment of $65,000 on March 10, 2016. The mortgage note carries 
an interest rate of 6.00% and matures March 20, 2021 with a balloon payment of $439,108. 

Land, Building, and Equipment 

Land, building, and equipment are recorded at cost, if purchased, or fair value, if contributed, less 
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated 
usefut asset lives, ranging from 3-30 years. Capital expenditures in excess of $500 are capitalized and 
depreciated. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. 

'-===Bern~ effcfaT-fifteJ·~-esH~nn-.~'ft~usmrrt~===========================~========= 
Beneficial interest in trusts represents split-interest agreements in which the Organization has been 
named the residual or income beneficiary of several irrevocable trust and unitrust agreements. The 
irrevocable trust agreements are measured at fair value upon contribution and at subsequent reporting 
dates. The terms of the unitrust agreements require a promise by the trust to pay fixed amounts for a 
specified period of time to the income beneficiaries. The assets contributed pursuant to split-interest 
agreements and the associated liabilities are measured at fair value upon contribution and at 
subsequent reporting dates. The unitrust agreements are measured at fair value based upon the 
present value of future cash distributions, using discount rates prevalent at the date of the gift. 

A charitable remainder unitrust is a trust that pays the donor or other named income beneficiary a 
percentage of the fair market value of the trust assets as revalued annually for a term of years or one 
or more lives. At the end of the trust term, the remaining principal goes to the charities named in the 
trust agreement. The fair value of the Organization's interest in the trust was estimated based on the 
income beneficiary's life expecta_ncy and a percentage payout rate. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue represents funds received in advance for Goodwill program services to be provided 
in the coming year. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWlLL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Support and Revenues 

o Contributed Goods Store Sales and Salvage and Recycling 

.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Contributed goods store sales consists of the sale of donor contributed goods. Support is recognized upon sale, as an allocation of the overall retail price received based upon the same accepted model of excess processing value over cost, as described above. 

Salvage and recycling consists of the bulk sale of donated goods- which have not otherwise been sold as store sales. 

o Contributions 

The Organization follows FASB ASC 958-605, Revenue Recognition. In accordance with this standard, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions that are initially restricted as to use are required to be reported as temporarily restricted support and are later reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon expiration of the time restriction or to unrestricted support upon use of the contribution in accordance with the restricted purpose. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction is satisfied or expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. 

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor. Contributions of goods for resale are recorded as revenue based upon the incremental increase in value addE}~ fro111 GoodVlfill's erogram rE}lated expensE} andprocesses. 

• Employment, Training, and Contracts 

The Organization receives funding under various federal, state and local government programs, and public grants. Employment, training, and contract revenues are recorded when performance occurs under the terms of the grant agreement. 

• Other Revenues 

In 2010, the Goodwill received funding under a contract with Palm Beach County to provide employment opportunities and training through the Goodwill Achievement Through Employment (GATE) program. These program revenues are reflected \.mder employment and training in the. Consolidated Statement of Activities. As a result of the GATE program, Goodwill established a program (E-books) in which it sells books over the internet and these revenues are reflected as other revenues. 

The Organization operates a rental assistance program under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Program participants are required to contribute a specified percentage of their individual income as rent; these amounts are reflected as· other revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. 

-13-
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

• Other Revenues, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Organization also provides management seNices to two other organizations: Lighthouse for 
the Bllnd (lighthouse) and Career Academy, a charter school, for which Goodwill acts as sponsor. 
The revenues from Lighthouse, a related party are eliminated during consolidation. Career 
Academy has a separate board and acts independently of the Organization. 

Expenses 

Expenses are summarized on a functional basis. Expenses that can be specifically identified with a 
functional activity are charged accordingly. The amount of time spent on the various functional 
categories by the employees are used to develop percentages which are used in allocating salary and 
related expenses and other expenses which cannot be specifically identified with a particular 
functional activity. 

Income Taxes 

Goodwill, the Foundation, and Lighthouse are exempt from federal income taxes under Section 
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and from state income taxes under similar provisions 
of the Florida Income Tax Code. The Organization has been classified as a publicly supported 
organization, which is not a private foundation under 509(a) of the Code. The Organization did not 
engage in any unrelated business activities during the year ended December 31, 2011, and 
accordingly there is no provision for income taxes reflected in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

-~~·-··- ··=:. · ·-·-· -~=rtle=@J:gan}z.ati:or-i:4©1k:lw~ASB-~AS6-• ~-0~1-0, Aero1,m#nft=fer~l-lFJeertainty,ia~meem0=Ta;.!\;lxet::.&i-----:;;;:·=·-::::1+±113~isi==== 
standard seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and 
recognition in accounting for income taxes. It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement 
attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position that an entity takes or 
expects to take in a tax return. An entity may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions 
that meet a "more likely than not" threshold. The Organization assesses the income tax positions 
based on management's evaluation of the facts, circumstances, and information available at the 
reporting date. The Organization uses the prescribed more likely than not threshold when making 
their assessment. There are currently no open Federal or State tax years under audit. 

Advertising 

Goodwill expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense was approximately 
$53,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, and is reflected as part of supplies and printing in the 
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. 

Shipping Expense 

Shipping expense is incurred as a result of the E-books program. Goodwill expenses the cost of 
shipping as incurred. Total shipping expense is reported on the Consolidated Statement of 
Functional Expenses. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Comparable Financial Information 

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparable information 
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, from which the summarized 
information was derived. Certain 201 0 amounts may have been reclassified to conform to 2011 
classificat:on::i, although any such reciassification would have no effect on the 2010 change in net assets. 

2. Investments 

3. 

Investments, as of December 3'1, 2011 consisted of the following, all of which are measured on a recurring basis as Level 1: 

Unrealized Goodwill: Cost Fair Value Gain (loss} 
Mutual funds $ 330,756 $ 310,021 $ (20,735) 

Foundation: 

Cash and cash equivalents 95,215 95,215 
Exchangi:jd-traded funds 87,860 89154 1 294 

t837 075 184.3.69 .. 1:,294 
·-

$ 513.831 $ 494.390 $ (19.441) 

Accounts and Bequests Receivable 

Accounts and bequests receivable as of December 31, 2011, consisted of the following: 

Accounts Bequest 
Goodwill: Receivable Receivable Total 

Due in less than one year $ 1,618,033 $ $ 1,618,033 Less allowance for uncollectible accounts 107,000 107,000 
1,511,033 1,511,033 

Lighthouse: 

Due in less than one year 36,206 50,000 86,206 
Inter-organization elimin~tions (47,139) (47,139) 

$ 1 500,100 $ 50,000 $ 1 550.100 

-15-



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUST_RIES, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 

Prepaid expenses and other assets as of December 31, 2011, consisted of the following: 

Goodwill: 
Deposits $ 65,452 
Prepaid insurance 33,872 
Prepaid rents 106,009 
Prepaid 1Norker's compensation 96,728 
Bond issue costs, net 125,408 
Loan closing costs, net 39,799 
Supplies 

7,583 
Other miscellaneous 13 214 

Lighthouse: 
488,065 

Deposits 480 
Prepc1id insurance 

6,139 
Supplies 4 047 

10 666. 
$ 498 731 

5. Notes, Re3ceivable 

Note receivable to finance the sale of the former Lighthouse operations 
building. The terms of _the note require lllonthly payments of principal _and 

--- -- · - --- ---- · -_ -•nteTest-=paymetfts--6f=$3~~cm1zaoo..,.n onlieiiote-is-based""On=a=se=yj5;· 5F=========== 
term and an interest rate of 6.00%. In addition, the note specifies an 
additional principal payment of $60,000 on March 10, 2016. The note 
matures March 20, 2021, with a balloon payment of $439,108. Management 
considers the note receivable to be fully collectible and, therefore, did not 
provide for an allowance for uncollectible accounts as of December 31, 
2011. 

Less current amount 
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619,248 

7988 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

6. Land, Buildin4r and Equipment 

land, building, and equipment as of December 31, 2011, consisted of the following: 

Goodwill Lighthouse Foundation Total 
Land $ 2,215,845 $ $ $ 2,215,845 
Building 6,635,946 61,626 6,697,572 
Building improvements 551,065 551,065 
Leasehold improvements 3,025,480 3,025,480 
Autmnoti\.1e and communica-

tions, including assets under 
capital leases 1,489,475 26,650 1,516,125 

Furniture and equipment, 
including assets under capital 
lease 4,455,039 50479 6 950 4,512,468 

18,372,850 138,755 6,950 18,518,555 
less accumulated depreciation 9,284,798 109,972 6950 9,401,720 

$ 9.088.052 $ 28.783 $ $ 9,116,835 

7. Beneficial Interest in Trusts 

Beneficial interest in trusts as of December 31, 2011, consisted of several split interest agreements 
wherein Goodwill and Lighthouse are named beneficiary of several irrevocable trust and unitrust 
agreements. Two (2) of the irrevocable trusts will pay all of the annual income to Lighthouse in 
perpetu_ity: __ 

Fair values of other long-term assets measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2011 are as 
follows: 

Goodwill: Level2 Level3 Total 
Beneficial interests in irrevocable trusts $ 99,605 $ 110,351 $ 209,956 
Charitable remainder unitrusts 106 356 106,356 

99,605 216 707 316,312 
Lighthouse: 

Benetici.al interests in irrevocable trusts 404,790 110,351 515,141 
Charitable remainder unitrusts 273,026 273,026 

404,790 383 377 788167 
$ 504.395 $ 600.084 $ 1.104.479 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

7. Beneficial Interest in Trusts, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following schedule reflects the assets and corresponding liabilities (i.e. the amount due to income 
beneficiary) associated with the charitable remainder unitrusts as of December 31, 2011: 

Goodwill: Assets Liabilities Total 
Charitable remainder unitrusts $ 212,362 $ 106,006 $ 106,356 

Ughthouse: 

Charitabie remainder unitrusts 632,351 359,325 273,026 
$ 844 713 $ 465,33"1 $ 379,382 

A reconciliation of the Organization's Level 3 instruments for the year ended December 31, 2011 is 
provided below: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions 
Reclassifications 
Net change in value 

Balance, end of year 

8. Accrued Expenses 

Accrued exoei:ises..aS-of December::31-2QJ;l;:-eo.nsisteclofJl:ta.followil'!g· 

Accrued payroll and related payables 
Accrued NISH fees 
Accrued employee PTO 
Accrued sales tax 
Other miscellaneous accrued expenses 

9. Line of' Credit 

G_oodwi/1 and Foundation 

Level3 

$ 391,561 
173,182 
50,156 

(14,815) 

$ 600.084 

$ 1,270,893 
12,507 
34,605 
66,169 
72 319 

$ 1.456.493 

GoodwBI and Foundation have a combined commitment from a financial institution for a $750,000 
revolving line of credit secured by real estate, with mortgages on the properties located at 1280 W. 
Indiantown Road, Jupiter, Florida, and 1715 and 1710 E. Tiffany Drive, West Palm Beach, Florida. 
Interest only payments are due each month at the Bank's base rate, plus 2.5%. The base rate shall 
never be less than 5.0%. Any unpaid principal balance plus accrued interest is due in full July 30, 
2012. There is no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2011. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Yeclr Ended December 31, 2011 

10. Bond Payable. Capital Leases. and Notes Payable 

A) Bond Payable 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

On May 1, 2006, Goodwill re-financed its industrial development revenue bond (IDB) with a tax­
exempt adjustable mode industrial development revenue bond, both of which were issued by Palm 
Beach County, Florida. The bond has a floating interest rate. Goodwill entered into an interest rate 
swap with a financial institution to fix the rate at 4.40% for a period of 1 O years, after which a rate 
change may occur. interest is payable monthly and principal is payable annually. 

The princip2! is payable according to the following schedule: 

2012: 
2013 
-2014 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 

BJ Bond Payable, continued 

$ 200,000 
210,000 
220,000 
230,000 
250,000 

3,360,000 

$ 4,470.000 

The bond is collateralized by a first mortgage on land and building with a book value of approximately $6,360,000 as of December 31, 2011. 

Loan Covenants 

· t:Jnctentre-termsofth"e borid, Gbodwitl-imlst maintain a fixeclcnarge c6verage·rat10 (FCCRJ of at least-
1.25 to 1.00. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Goodwill had a FCCR service ratio of 4.31 to 1.00. 

Goodwill must also maintain a ratio of senior liabilities to effective tangible net worth (net worth) of no 
more than 3.25 to 1.00. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Goodwill maintained a net worth ·ratio of 1.43 to 1.0. 

BJ Capital Leases 

Goodwill leases equipment and vehicles for its Okeechobee Waterway contract. The capitalized cost 
of the equipment and vehicles reflected in the fixed assets is approximately $853,000. The leases 
require monthly payments totaling $17,131, of principal and interest at an average effective interest 
rate of 7.07%. The leases mature through March 2012. 

-19-

. ---- - ·--- --·---- --- --------· -----------------



GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 -------------------------------
10. · Bond Pavable, Capital Leases. and Notes Payable, continued 

The following schedule illustrates future minimum lease payments under capital leases and the 
present value o1 net mlnimum lease payments: 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less current rnaturities 

Obligations under capital leases, non-current maturities 

CJ Notes Payable 

Goodwili: 
$1,250,000 note payable to a bank, at an annual interest rate of 6.80%, 
requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $8,751, collateralized by 
real estate. This note matures January 2015, with a balloon payment of 

$ 

$ 

24,723 
6 050 

18,673 
11 063 

7.610 

$1,044,704. $ 1,135,887 

$'! ,500,000 note payable to a bank, at an annual interest rate of 7.00%, 
requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $13,565, collateralized by 
real estate: This note is based on a fifteen year amortization and matures 
June 2015, with a balloon payment of $1, 163,531. $ 1,411,354 

$ 2,547,241 

DJ Future Maturities 

The future principal maturity payment schedules of Goodwill are as follows: 

Goodwill: Capital Notes 
· Bond Lease Payable Total 

2012 $ 200,000 $ 11,063 $ 91,761 $ 302,824 
2013 210,000 7,610 98,942 316,552 
2014 220,000 106,133 326,133 
2015 230,000 2,250,405 2,480,405 
2016 250,000 250,000 
Therea·fter 3,360,000 3,360,000 

$ 4,470,000 $ 18,673 $ 2,547,241 $ 7,035,914 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

11. Derivative Financial Instrument 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Organization's derivative financial instrument consisted of the following interest rate swap 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2011: 

Goodwill: Level3 
Interest rate swap $ 653,207 

Good'Nili entered into an interest rate swap arrangement with Wells Fargo Bank (formerly Wachovia 
Bank) on its tax-exempt adjustable mode industrial development.revenue bond series 2006 effective 
June 1, 2006 that in effect fixed the interest rate on Goodwill's long-term bank note payable at 
4.40%. The arrangement is scheduled to expire on July 1, Z016. The notional amount of the contract as of December 31, 2011 was $4,470,000. · 

Goodwill's purpose in entering into the swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest 
rate increases on the related variable rate debt and not to hold the instrument for trading purposes. 
Accordingly, the swap arrangement, which is a derivative financial instrument, is classified as a cash 
flow hedge. As such, the derivative financial instrument is reflected on the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position at its estimated fair value. Because the hedge is considered effective, the results 
of the swap arrangement are included in interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of 
Activities. The effect for the year ended December 31, 2011 was to increase interest expense by 
approximately $195,000. The liquidating value of the swap as of December 31, 2011 was 
approximately ·$653,000. This amount would be owed to the bank if Goodwill were to terminate the agreement. 

A reconciliation of this Level 3 instrument for the year ended December 31, 2011 is provided _ ___ - ---- ·-·-be!Ew . . . .. - . 

Balance, beginning of year 
Net unrealized loss on derivative financial instrument 

Balance, end of year 

12. Employee Benefit Plans 

$ 

$ 

580,442 
72765 

653,207 

Goodwill maintains a qualified thrift plan under section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under 
this plan, Goodwill, at its discretion, will make a matching contribution on the employee's behalf equal 
to 100% of the first 4% of employee's allowable contribution. Goodwill also maintains a 457(b) 
deferred compensation plan. Under this plan, Goodwill makes a non-elective deferral contribution of 
4% of eligible compensation. Goodwill contributed approximately $203,000 to the employee benefit plans for the year ended December 31, 2011. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

12. Emplovee Benefit Plans, continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Goodwill also provides a deferred compensation plan for a management executive. The agreement 
provides for annual contributions to a "Rabbi Trust" arrangement for each year including 2011. The 
executive vested in this plan on December 31, 2011. Goodwill repaid approximately $250,000 
borrowed from the trust in prior years. In addition, Goodwill funded an additional $75,000 in deferred 
contributions. Approximately $325,000 was returned to the trust during 2011. 

13. Related Padv Transactions 

During 201 'I, Goodwill advanced funds to various parties that are related by common management 
and/or board members. Goodwill advanced approximately $672,000 to of a charter school, Career 
Academy, which was founded by Goodwill and is related to the broader mission of Goodwill. The 
charter school owed Goodwill approximately $132,000 as of December 31, 2011. Goodwill also paid 
Florida Goodwill Association, a membership association with a common officer, approximately 
$20,000 for dues, and paid to Goodwill industries International (GIi), an affiliated national 
organization, approximately $153,000 for annual dues in 2011. 

Goodwlll also received payments from various related parties during 2011. Goodwill received 
approximately $193,000 from the charter school as reimbursement for rent which was part of the 
advances referenced above. In addition, the charter school reimbursed approximately $489,000 of 
the expenses referenced above over the course of 2011 (including approximately $172,000 owed to 
Goodwill at the end of 2010). Goodwill contributed approximately $31,000 to the charter school and 
the charter school owed approximately $132,000 to Goodwill as of December 31, 2011. 

14. Commitments 

As part of its cash management activities, Goodwill has issued irrevocable standby letters of credit to 
utilities, vendors, and landlords. By using letters of credit in lieu of placing cash deposits, Goodwill 
has better use of its working capital. Currently, Goodwill has approximately $380,000 issued under 
these agreements. 

Goodwill leases storefront facilities, residential units and vehicles under several operating leases that 
expire through 2020. Rent expense incurred for the facilities under these leases, which is reflected 
as part of occupancy in th~ consolidated financial statements, is approximately $7,095,000 for the 
year ended December 31, 2011. The storefront leases contain renewal options varying from one to 
seven years, and rent escalation clauses ranging from three percent to six percent per year. 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

14. Commitments. continued 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Total minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2011 are approximately: 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 

15. Conceat@tions and Contingencies 

$ 6,671,100 
7,004,600 
7,338,600 
7,705,100 
8,047,800 

16,628,600 
$ 53,395,800 

At various times during the year, the Organization had more funds on deposit at financial institutions than the $250,000 currently insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Management regularly monitors the financial condition of its banking institution, along with its cash balances, and in so doing, tries to keep this potential risk to a minimum. In management's opinion, its cash management does not represent unusual risk. As of December 31, 2011, cash deposits exceeded federally insured limits by approximately $1,654,000. 

With 1·espect to accounts receivable, Goodwill does not appear subject to significant credit risk as its principal account debtors are State of Florida Vocational Rehabilitation, which accounts for approximately 21 % of the o.utstandiog balance and .ihe U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, which. =::.-===:::;a:;:;;te;;;:::c.:;;::;ou;:;:;:rif?forapproxirrratetr22¥o--ott11ITTmtstanatrrg1:)alance. The remaining· oalan·ce ·of :,ts accounts 
receivable is owed by a variety of organizations or companies. 

Goodwill is involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. In management's opinion, such matters will not have a material effect upon the financial position of Goodwill. 

16. Net Assets Restrictions 

As of December 31, 2011, temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of: 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Time restrictions 
Split interest agreements 

Permanently restricted net assets 
Time restrictions 
Split interest agreements - income 

to be received in perpetuity 

$ 

$ 
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316,312 $ 517,470 $ 833,782 

270,697 270,697 
316.312 $ 788,167 $ 1,104,479 



GIULFSTREAIVI GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

17. Subsequent Events 

Date of Management Evaluation 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 4, 2012, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that there were no further 
disclosures required to be presented in these financial statements. 

Collection of Note Receivable 

Subsequent to year end, the receivable resulting from the sale of the Lighthouse building was 
collected in full. 
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olyfield & Thomas, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants & Advisors '125 Butler Street• West Palm Beach, FL 33407 (561) 689-6000" Fax (561) 689-6001 • www.holyfieldandthomas.com 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Directors of 
Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 
West Palm Beach, Florida 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated June 4, 2012. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by l:he Comptroller General of the United States. 
Internal Control over Financial Reportina 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Gulfstream Goodwill 
Industries, Inc. 's internal control over financial reporting. 

=--'-__::c_,-=-==--~defICte-ficrifF'trtt~rna.1· control exists: when-=ttte · d-~sign or oper~tion of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement o·f the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. in a 
separnte letter dated June 4, 2012. 

This report is intended for the information of the board of directors, management, federal, state, and 
local awarding agencies.and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be, and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

West Palm Beach, Florida 
June 4, 2012 
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GULFSTREAM GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION 

As of December 3'1, 2011 

Eliminating 
Goodwill Lighthouse Foundation Entry Totals 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,523,955 $ 614,907 $ 358,122 $ $ 2,496,984 
Investments 310,021 184,369 494,390 
Accounts ancl bequests receivable, net 1,511,033 86,206 (47,139) 1,550,100 
Note receivable, current 215,384 7,988 (215,384) 7,988 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 488,065 10,666 498,731 
~ontributed goods inventory 2,294,239 2,294,239 

Total current assets 6,342,697 719,767 542,491 (262,523) 7,342,432 

Note receivable, non-current 611,260 611,260 
Land, building and equipment, net 9,088,052 28,783 9,116,835 
Benefical interest in trusts 316,312 788,167 1,104,479 

Total assets. $ 15,747,061 $ 2,147,977 $ 542,491 $ (262,523) $ 18,175,006 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 348,701 $ 45,111 $ $ (44,310) $ 349,502 
____ Accrued ~xpenses 1,456,493 1,456,493 -·--

Deferred revenue 3,322 3,322 
Current portion of capital leases, 
note~ and bond payable 302,824 2,829 (2,829) 302,824 

Total current liabilities 2,111,340 47,940 (47,139) 2,112,141 

Capital leases and notes payable 2,463,090 215,384 (215,384) 2,463,090 
Derivative financial instrument 653,207 653,207 
Bond payable 4,270,000 4,270,000 

Total liabilities 9,497,637 263,324 (262,523) 9,498,438 

Net assets 6,249,424 1,884,653 542,491 8,676,568 
Total liabilities and net assets $ 15,747,061 $ 2,147,977 $ 542,491 $ {262,523) $ 18,175,006 

See independent auditor's report. 
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GULFSTRIEA~.fi GOODWILL INDUSTRIES, INC. CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF 
ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

Eliminating 
Support and revenues: Goodwill Lighthouse Foundation Entry Totals 

Support 
Contributed goods store sales $ 26,775,914 $ $ $ $ 26,775,914 
Salvage and recycling 1,427,552 1,427,552 
Contributions 518,781 276,252 98,450 893,483 

Total support 28,722,247 276,252 98,450 29,096,949 

Revenues: 

Employment and training 4,753,282 428,441 5, 18'1,723 
Contracts 4,213,777 4,213,777 
Investment income 16,602 19,208 6,474 42,284 
Gain on disposal of assets 14,432 449,440 463,872 
Realized and unrealized gain 

(loss) on investments (18,018) 2,823 36 (15,159) 
Change in value of beneficial 
interest in trusts (817) (35,147) (35,964) 

Other revenues 1,789,421 4,359 (768,606) 1,025,174 
Total revenues 10,768,679 869,124 6,510 (768,606~ 10,875,707 
Total support and revenues 39,490,926 1,145,376 104,960 {768,606) 39,972,656 

Expenses: 
Salary and other related expenses 22,410,299 382,225 (382,225) 22,410,299 Bad debt expense 77,880 77,880 
Bank and other fees 98,439 2,076 566 101,081 ~=:.:__--=__:~y1:ne0t te::Goodwill 22.Q,2-26 (22.Q,2-2§)····. 
Interest 184,559 (84) 184,475 Meetings 35,441 3,184 (396) 38,229 Membership dues 195,598 2,538 198,136 Store discounts and other 330,725 460 (460) 330,725 
Occupancy 9,815,958 109,485 (81,133) 9,844,310 Postage 139,483 13,575 (1,110) 151,948 
Professional fees and contract 

services 763,948 78,357 1,002 (55,073) 788,234 
Shipping and freight 3,501 3,501 
Specific assistance to clients and 

organizations 33,459 1,600 35,059 
Supplies and printing 1,008,302 30,456 236 (4,332) 1,034,662 
Telephone 554,593 9,748 (2,704) 561,637 
Transportation 1,263,467 32,565 (20,947) 1,275,085 
Depreciation and amortization 951,953 23,556 975,509 

Total ,expenses 37,867,605 909,967 1,804 {768,606) 38,010,770 
Other loss: 

Loss on derivative financial instrument (72,765~ (72,765) 
Change in net assets $ 1,550,556 $ 235,409 $ 103,156 $ $ 1,889,121 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Industrial Development Bond Application 
Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 

The Palm Beach County Department of Economic Sustainability (DES) has 
reviewed the Industrial Development Bond Application (specifically for a 501 (c) 
(3) bond) submitted by Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. ("The Borrower") to 
be used for the refinancing of a previously issued bond, a conventional loan and 
for the purchase of new point of sale (POS) software and equipment for its retail 
operations. 

The Application requests that Palm Beach County issue $7,000,000 in 
Industrial Development Bonds (IDB). The proceeds from the bond sales will be 
used to refinance approximately $4,060,000 of the 2006 issuance, 
approximately $2,400,000 of conve'ntional loans that were used for the 
purchase of capital equipment. The balance of the bond issuance will be used 
for the purchase of software and equipment related to operations. Per The 
Borrower's counsel, a failure to issue this latest bond will result in the cessation 
of business activities for The Borrower as the term on their current bond is due. 

Economic Analysis 

The Application states that, The Borrower employs approximately 870 full-time 
equivalent (FTEs) employees. DES conducted a Regional Economic Models 
Inc. (REMI) analysis showing the following economic impact for the project, 
which reflects direct and indirect jobs as well as GDP, representing both 
compensation and profits. 

REMI results indicate there is a positive economic impact exceeding $216. 7 M 
over five years and resulting in the employment of 1,035 full-time equivalents 
(combined direct and indirect employees). There is no impact on taxes as the 
Applicant qualifies as a non-profit organization. 

-·. ------ --· -------------------- --------.. -----···-.. ------- .... 
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Financial Overview 

11 Gulfstream Goodwill was formed in June 1966 as a non-profit corporation and has been serving the greater community since then. The financial statements consolidate information from three entities, Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. ("Goodwill"), Gulfstream Industries Foundation, Inc. ("Foundation") and Lighthouse for the Blind of the Palm Beaches, Inc. ("lighthouse") collectively known as the "Organization", for which Goodwill has control. 

Summary of Financial Statement for the Period Ended August 31, 2012 

11 The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and are deemed sufficient by the audit firm, "Holyfield & Thomas, LLC" to provide a basis for their audit opinion. Per the audit opinion offered, the financial statements fairly present the financial position of Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Inc. 

11 For the period ending December 31, 2012, the Organization had an increase in net assets of approximately $2M. The change is primarily attributable to increases in Accounts Receivables and Beneficial Interest in Trusts & Estates whereas Goodwill is estimated to settle within two (2) years. 

Contributions of Project to Palm Beach County 

Goodwill Industries, Inc. has been in operation since 1966 and serves as a premier provider of quality rehabilitation, employment and training opportunities for people with barriers to employment and independence. 

Recommendation 

Based on the review of the initial Application, financial statements, retained/created jobs, and the County's limited obligation, the Department of Economic Sustainability supports Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, lnc.'s application. 

cc: Shannon LaRocque-Baas, P.E. 
Assistant County Administrator 

----~-------·------------


